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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET ("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sing
Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHREE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (the
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), | would like to present
herewith the 2010 Annual Report of the Group.

“Company”) and its subsidiaries

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

“"Mobile Payment” Business of Mobile E-commerce

On 20 August 2010 and 25 October 2010, the Group
entered into a four-year and a five-year strategic cooperation
agreement with the Yunnan Branch of China UnionPay Co.,
Ltd. and the China UnionPay Co., Ltd. respectively. The Yunnan
project was officially launched on 20 August. In the fourth
quarter, the Hubei and Guizhou projects were also launched
consecutively, along with official operation commenced in
the three provinces. The Group is of the view that as the
number of subscribers has increased to nearly one hundred
thousand in only three months’ time, it proves that the market
response is good and the long-term strategic cooperation with
UnionPay in the extensive market of “mobile payment” and
“mobile e-commerce” is of significant strategic meaning. The
negotiation and the preparation work in various aspects have
commenced for the projects in Shanghai, Zhejiang and Jiangsu.

Finance and Banking Business

The Group introduced its first and second generation RUNPOS
products to two more large-scale commercial banks during
the year, which significantly increased our market share and
sales, and laid a more extensive market foundation for the
development of “mobile payment” business.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHREE

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In order to ensure the smooth progress of the “mobile
payment”, a material strategic project in collaboration with
UnionPay in the year, the Group recorded substantial increase
in costs attributable by its investment in human resources,
research and development, and market exposure, which
has resulted in a loss for the Group over the year. However,
the Group is of the view that such centralized investment is
necessary, which is of significant strategic meaning to the
formation of long-term development and core competitiveness
of the Group. Hence, the Group has undergone two rounds
of financing. The analysis of the financing market response
has demonstrated that the “mobile payment” and “mobile
e-commerce” projects of the Group were adequately
recognized by the market.

The Group will be fully committed in developing the innovative
products of our RUNPOS series, particularly the “mobile
payment” and “mobile e-commerce”, in order to steadily
achieve the substantial target of strategic transformation of
the Group. We will continue to enhance the close cooperation
and effective work with UnionPay and other major clients, and
reinforce the risk control and various sorts of management
in respect of safety, technology, research and development,
marketing, sales and finance. In particular, stringent monitoring
and risk control are imposed on the various investments
of capital so as to ensure the real success of the strategic
transformation of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
to all the shareholders who have been rendering their support
to the Group, and all the staff who have been so dedicated
and have been working so hard. In addition, | would also like
to express my sincere thanks to the customers, cooperation
partners, suppliers and bankers for their confidence and trust in
the Group.

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

28 March 2011
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Management discussion and Analysis
EEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (“the financial
year"”), the Group recorded a total turnover of approximately
RMB15,435,000 representing a decrease of 63% as
compared to last year (2009: turnover were approximately
RMB41,417,000).

B %5 O R

AEBTEEFEARKNE ([HE])LEH
BMHEARSRENEE  BRRHE R IR -

HE T ZTF+_A=+-—BILHEE(2
HFEE]) AEEHGHERADARE
15,435,0007T * WA F R B 2 8963% (= F
SNFHEWALHARYEAL1,417,0007L) °

Turnover of the Group comprises of: REEMNEEHBRE:
Turnover
=]
2010 2009
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFT
Sale of software products IHE A E m 1,867 1,605
Sale of related hardware products HEBBEEMTER 903 13,697
Provision of software-related technical TR AR 1 AR B R T

support services X IER 12,665 26,115
15,435 41,417

The Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB63,664,000
for the financial year, a significant loss as compared to last year
(2009: net loss was approximately RMB1,547,000). Decrease in
turnover, initial recognition of warrants in derivative financial
liability, impairment loss on intangible assets, allowance on
trade receivables, impairment loss recognised on inventories,
increase in distribution and selling expenses, increase in
administrative expenses and research and development costs
are of the factors leading to the significant loss.

We will continue trying our best to increase sales and
strengthen our cost control. With the products of our group
becoming more mature in the market and the effective cost
control, we expect that financial results of the group will be
further improved in the coming year.

TEEBRERFEHEBBEEHNAARE
63,664,0007T AL AR REREE (ZF
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BEREEE EBRESEREFTERE FTERERL
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Management discussion and Analysis
EEENWE D

8

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, CAPITAL
STRUCTURE AND GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s bank loans was NIL
(2009: a bank loan of RMB16.8 million, which bore interest at
rate of Hong Kong Dollar Inter Bank Offered Rate plus 2.75%
per annum and other loan of RMB1.8 million, which bore
interest at 3% per annum).

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year (2009:
Nil).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars,
amounted to approximately RMB35.9 million (2009: RMB5.1
million).

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2010 was approximately 65%
(2009: 94%).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies, or significant investments
during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed
on note 7 of the notes to the financial statements.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

RBET VBER EXRARBREE
BER

R-E—ZTF+_A=+—8 AEETEHE
EBERTEE (ZZ2ZNF  RITEEAARE
16,800,0007T * & F & A EBRTRE EFE M
Bzt hRHEAMEERARS1,800,000
TOFNEEEAZZ) .

RERER ARELHARCHE (ZTTH
F:2)

=

N_E—TE+-_A=+—H AEFEFAEAR
B ETRAETHNREEMIREEBYHNAARE
35,900,000T ( Z = ZF 1L F : AR¥5,100,000
JT) °

R-ZE—ZE+_A=+—H K~&EFELEEE
BHR(RATAEBRBRUNEERBINA
65% (ZZEZNHF:94%) °
MEBREEADWERHE
AEBRERFE - TESAWBESHEHE
ek NG

oDEER

R 7% R M TR B RE7 4R 88 -



Management discussion and Analysis

EEENWNE DN

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 199 employees
(2009: including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically

119 employees),

determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the year
amounted to approximately RMB14.8 million (2009: RMB11
million).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which
were set out in the Report of the Directors.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any charges
on group assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group's future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001
under the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives”
and “Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds”

respectively.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group's revenue generating operations are mainly
transacted in RMB. The directors consider the impact of foreign
exchange exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2009: Nil).

RZE—ZF+=—A=1+—H AEEERE199
FZET(ZZETNAF119BET)  DHNFEH
BB -AEBME REARKNIEERNE T
MEBAFREMEBET 2|RFREZEIRA
AR 14,800,000L° (ZEZENF: AR
11,000,0007%) °

REED KA —BBRETS
EREE-

HBFELHE

P ARSE Y EAT

BEYBAETEEEF

SERKREARELABAEREENFIG
g WHEAERR —FMpt LA B RED
HBCIERARR —ET-—F\A=+THKN
BEERXHESER] R IBTHRNERER
RS HREMR] e

& = B
ZK%Iieﬁﬁlﬂﬁéﬂ‘fiuﬁz)\E’J%i‘%%ﬁf’au/\ﬁﬁg
ETRG EFRRAKEZINERBER -
558 E

RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—B AEEWEF
MEAKIBEE(ZZEZNF &) -

Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZFFH



Management discussion and Analysis
EEENWE D

PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS EGNAS
Please refer to the Chairman’s Statement for a discussion on B HELEFIEREETNTH-
this.
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE T REFENTBEHE
GROUP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
BZ-2-25 HEZ2-TTNE HE-TT)\E HE-TTLE HE-TTNE
tZAZ+-B +ZA=t-8 +ZA=t-B +ZA=t-B +ZA=t+-8
LEE IERE tFE IHEE IHFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ANEEFT AREFT ANEEFT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (E7)
Turnover HERA 15,435 01,417 18,214 29,719 21377
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders — IXER {5 A,/ (B518) (63,664) (1,547) (8,454) 17 (16,151)
Total assets EELE 62,760 36,432 25,380 32,687 27,160
Total liabilities BELE 40,675 34,282 (25,948) (44,731) (41,713)
Net assets/(liabilities) REFE/ (BF) 22,085 2,150 (568) (12,044) (14,553)
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEHERREPRP

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 HEZZE—ZTF+_A=-+—HIEFE &
December 2010 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and BT EHEFLEFEGNESHE LIS

customers are as follows: BT

Purchases EER

— the largest supplier 25% (2009: 47%) —HmAHEER 25% ( ZEZNF 147%)
— five largest suppliers combined 66% (2009: 96%) —HhARHEEEH 66% (ZZEZTNF:96%)
Sales HER

— the largest customer 12% (2009: 13%) —HZARF 2% (ZEZNF:13%)
— five largest customers combined 44% (2009: 48%) —HABFAHK 44% (ZZZTNF :48%)

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder ZEZ -FHEMNBBAXRESAEEG AR A
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%  BEZAR5% A E B RIARER - R il = B fE
of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the major BEHEFHEAEEZ -

suppliers or customers stated above.
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Biographical information of directors and Senior Management

EEREREERBCERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 66, the Chairman of our Group
and the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr.
Hung, who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music,
is also among the founders of the Group. He is in possession
of more than 20 years’ company management and strategy
programming experience and over 10 years' successful
experience in managing high-tech companies; hence he is
familiar with the China business management and marketing
planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge of the Group's macro-
strategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 57, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. Mr. Cui is one of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee
Software Co., Ltd. and has been working for our Group since
its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui is responsible for the investment
programming of the Group. Before joining the Group, he
used to work for China Hangzhou Automatization Research
Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan Computer Application
Research Institute as director and president of their Developing
Departments.

Mr. Xu, Shu Yi, aged 46, a Director of our Group. Mr. Xu
acquired professional accountant qualification in 1995 in
China. Mr. Xu has over 27 years’ company financing and
executive director’s experience in various industries like real
estate developing, hotel industry and food-manufacturing
industry. He is now taking charge of the Group's financial
strategy and planning of our Group.
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Biographical information of directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDITING COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, Jp, aged 63, an independent non-
executive director of the Group and Chairman of the Auditing
Committee. He is also an independent non-executive director
of a number of public companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. PAO was elected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young
Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons of the World in 1983. He was also an ex-Urban
Councilor. In the past 20 years plus, he has been actively
serving on government policy committees and statutory
bodies, especially those of town planning, urban renewal,
public housing, culture and arts and environment matters. Mr.
PAO holds a Master of Science degree in human settlements
planning & development.

Mr. Tam, Kwok Hing, aged 63, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm.

Mr. Lo, King Man, Jp, aged 73, an independent non-executive
director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career in academic
administration at the University of Hong Kong and became
deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1986.
He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong Academy for
performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of Peace in Hong
Kong, and he has an extensive record of public service. He has
also served on the governing or executive bodies of numerous
educational and cultural organizations. He was appointed
an independent non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang
Holding Int’l Ltd. in September 1994.
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Biographical information of directors and Senior Management

EEREREERBCERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang, Loong Cheong, aged 64, is the Senior Consultant
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in April 2004, he was
responsible for the sales and management, etc in certain listed
companies. Regarding to the trading and business networks
in the PRC, he has distinct and professional knowledge and
experiences. After his joining, with respect of his experiences
and strategies in the PRC, he has important contribution to the
market development of the new products.

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 31, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Tong holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree in Finance from University of
Southern Queensland. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tong is an associate member of The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
Prior to joining the Group in June 2007, he has accumulated
over several years of accounting, auditing and financing
experience. He is now responsible for accounting, financing and
company secretarial duties.

Mr. Qiu, Lei, aged 40, is the General Manager of Hangzhou
Singlee Technology Co., Ltd. He graduated from School of
Machano-Electronic Engineering of Xidian University. Before
joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Qiu was employed in China
Zhenhua Group. Mr. Qiu had occupied the sales director of
Singlee Software (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. and the commercial director
of Hangzhou Singlee Technology Co., Ltd. etc, with rich
experiences in financial industry.
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Report of the directors

EEWES

14

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the development and
sale of information and network technologies and services to
the financial industry in the PRC.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 33
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 33.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 35.
DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 27 to
the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At 31
December 2010, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company. (2009: Nil)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2010, shareholders (other than directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or, directly, or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote on all circumstances at general meeting of any other
members of the Group or substantial shareholders as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

AR 3

REABREQARE (—NAN\—F) RARRF QA
AEERMAA ARBRD G E K E T
R-R-_T-ZFF+-_A=+—RH ARQFRA
AHRETHRRZFE (ZSETNFE) -

ITERRZESERS

MARBEMEFHITHRAEMN R_F—
TET_A=FT—H UTREEEFLAE
fERBIZEXVEDSE2 I F 38R 10 MR SR R AN R AR
BRARBBR D RARERDOEZHBRR (K
NAEFHITHAZRIN KEEXRERE
R AABEBER TR ARBEEAEMKE R F
BRAE ERBZE(ERBRAEEZ5% 3%
RIBEERFLHPEGRYIFEI6HAFTENE M
Ffrac &% :

Number of shares held

BERGHE

Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding

RREB B REmER "R HR FAEREXBESH

Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
EnEmn (note 1)
(Btat1)

Great Song Enterprises Limited Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
R (notes 1 and 2)
(Krat1k2)

Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
BERME ST A A B R (notes 2 and 4)
(Krat2k4)

Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
THRZT B (notes 2 and 3)
(Kat2X3)

Mdm [u Pun Family interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
e 2+ RERED (note 5)
(Kt7E5)

UBS AG Interest of a controlled 45,000,000 - 5.54%
corporation (note 6)
SR VNS 35 (Ki:t6)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and Great Song Enterprises
Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of Great
Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one third of the
voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms. Li Kei Ling is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by
Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power of
Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by virtue of the
SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited as
mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed to be
interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial
Limited. Mdm Iu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to be
interested in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed or taken
to be interested for the purpose of the SFO.

6. According to the disclosure of interests form submitted by UBS AG on 22
October 2010 (the date of relevant event being 20 October 2010), these
shares were held through a subsidiary of UBS AG. The 45,000,000 Shares
(long position) were held in the capacity of having interest of a controlled
corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of any other member of the Group or any other
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Az 2 2 7] - B3 ARRRAE 55 4 J2 Great Song Enterprises
Limited SAfE RIB& i SR #5745 - i Great Song Enterprises
LimitedAIF AR L T2 EHA -

2. #itB& 1 H Goldcorp Industrial Limited$$ 4 °

3. ZFHBLZIEFIGreat Song Enterprises Limitedfyi%
ZEBB =92 M#%&%EHAGoldcorp Industrial
Limited®9 R ZRBB =9 2 — - R FFHF R BAE K -
ZFH IS4+ # G E# B Goldcorp Industrial Limited Fri
5 #9287,855,000/% i 1 ) A A #E =5

4. ﬁbmﬁl&f‘ii%ﬁGoldcorp Industrial Limited#93% Z # 12
D2 EmREHF R EEEN - RREIS L E R E
%EGOIdcorp Industrial LimitedF7#% 74 #287,855,000

& A 17 ) AR (R R 2 o

5. #ZZ B fGoldcorp Industrial Limited® 25 A -
1% £ SCHT FE4RT it - AR B 1S St A 4% AR 1B % A Goldcorp
Industrial LimitedF7T# A #9287,855,0000% % {7 £ 48 &)
Eam oW L T RERREBEENET REFSHFREE
R FWEEREREBLIEREEIRRAEEZS
ROBERFEEER

6. RIEUBS AGR2010F10A220 (HutmARBEHMA
HA2010F10 8208 ) 2R MERPHRE  ZERMH 2
FEBUBS AGRIMIE AR5 A - £#5H #945,000,000/%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required to be entered into the register required
to be kept by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.66 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Shares in the Company:

EERTHRAH R SER

RZZE-—ZF+-A=+—RH REZHFLHPE
GRBIEXVERD 87 R E 8N R ME AN A Al K i
RABBARAREERITRAHN A AR HE
AR RARREE (E&E R B 5 M EHEMFEXV
#B(FERAPIEST1E) ) Ry - R RME
FH D (BREERERE S LB GIINZ
FHENEBIEREERENEERER) - IR
BESRIERAIEI2EATLRARAE
FHELMEBERBAFER ETRANES 465
5.661R AR S AN A A KB XX A #E 25 2 FE R 10
T

AT :

alj

Number of shares held

BFERHEA
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEpng B3, EmER HR Br BEREXBEIW
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 35.46%
RERLIE EE RS (note 1)
(Biat1)
Shares in associated corporation: MHEEE R

Number of ordinary shares held
in Goldcorp Industrial Limited

(note 2)
# Goldcorp Industrial Limited
FEEBRREE

(Brat2)
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEpng 54 EmER Ha BRE FAEREXBESL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Personal interest 1 - 35.46%

RRENE T AL (EPNE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai has
50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2010 composed of 2 ordinary shares. Goldcorp Industrial Limited held
287,855,000 Shares in the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 27 August 2001, the Directors may at their discretion grant
options to employees (including Directors of the Company)
of the Group and other persons who, in the sole discretion
of the board of the Directors, have contributed to the Group
(“Participants”). The Scheme enables the Company to grant
share options to Participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The Scheme would be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
After the listing of the shares on GEM, the total number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue upon
completion of placing, capitalisation issue and say other shares
to be issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment option in
connection with the listing of the shares on GEM. According
to the Scheme, the total number of shares available for issue is
60,300,000 shares which represents 7.43% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of this annual report.
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1. P& 15 B Goldcorp Industrial Limited$ 4 - AR Eh1E 5t
4 7 Goldcorp Industrial Limited$ & 50 % H # 25 °
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Industrial Limited#§7%5287,855,000/% 4~ 22 &1 A& 13 °
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FRE AN RN 2 B EITIRANEZ0% - IR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12 months period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant.

The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant of
the option and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option.

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28
days from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10
years from the date of grant.

On 8 April 2002 the Company granted 60,230,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.614 per share to 163 employees
(including three executive directors) of the Group. Shares of the
Company were at closing price HK$0.58 immediately before the
day on which options were granted.

On 1 June 2004 the Company granted 10,000,000 options to
subscribe for shares in the Company under the scheme at an
exercise price of HK$0.14 per share to 2 chief executives of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price HK$0.14
immediately before the day on which options were granted.

BRERTE (&)

EERGBHEAT —EANRS2EERE
TEERLBERNBERE (BRETENRE
RITEHBEHE) - KBRS HIT R T HT
MDA EBAR R L AHEHTRO A
1% °

REEAHEFEE2HRTE HEXERETD
REHBRAEE B Mt W B MR H B g
AR AEEXAMNFHRTEEREFHR
= e

EETWIRABELBAR TERENERX
ERM28RN BREBWERBRIEANERX
EWEREMARF - WRK A REMEHEE 1T
BREZAZK SR FETEHARZHEDH]
R EEERE -

BB RNEESRAZ AR AN HAE AR
RIZREBERT S IRFITE - BT REH A
HIR+FEmiRiTE-

KRR ZAER —_EE _FW A/ /\HM163
#EE (BEMMHITESE)E 760,230,000
Wt BRI ZIREZITEEREREE
0614t - EERERNAI—ERZ S A AAA
MREWTERTRERE0S8IT.

RAFRZFAER ZTENF A —HAMA
SREIEE 8 T8 F10,000,0000% i% 15 2 B8 B
W ZIREZTEEAEREE. 14T EHE
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BERAB®014TT -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.36 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share to its directors and
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which
options were granted.

On 16 August 2010 the Company granted 8,990,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.84 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.84 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per
share to Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Chairman of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.730 immediately
before the day on which options were granted. The grant of
share options to Mr. Hung Yung Lai and the specific mandate
to allot, issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon
conversion of the foregoing share options were approved by
the SGM held on 28 February 2011.

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714 per share
to its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were
at closing price of HK$0.690 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. The grant of share options to its
employees of the Company and the specific mandate to allot,
issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon conversion
of the foregoing share options were approved by the SGM held
on 28 February 2011.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The summary details of options granted are as follows:

RETE (&)

BRECHEFBOT

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
share options share options share options share options share options share options
Name of directors outstanding as  granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
and employees Exercise period at 1 January 2010 the period the period the period the period 31 December 2010
§2-%-2f% §2-%-2f%
-f-H TZA=+-8
AT BrRd BrREnR BRERE BRE AN AT
ESREELE 5 BREYE BREYE BREHE BREYE BREHE REHAE
Cui Jian 7 September 2002 to 3,180,000 - - - - 3,180,000
7 April 2012
ER “ZE-fNALAZE
“B-"£MALA
Continuous contract 9 April 2008 to 30,300,000 - - - (2,980,000) 27,320,000
employees (other than 8 October 2017
directors)
REANEB(EZRY) —TTN\FNANRE
ZE-+E+ANA
Pao Ping Wing 19 July 2010 to - 600,000 - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
CAES ZT-ZELATNAE
“ECEE-ATAA
Tam Kwok Hing 19 July 2010 to - 600,000 - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
%EE ~3-FELRTARE
ZBEE-ATAR
Lo King Man 19 July 2010 to - 600,000 - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
ESX ZE-ZELATARE
ZEBEE-ATAR
Continuous contract 19 July 2010 to - 19,100,000 - - (570,000) 1,853,000
employees (other than 18 January 2020
directors)
REGNER (B3R ZZ-ZELATNAEZ
ZEBEE-ATAR
Continuous contract 16 February 2011 to - 8,990,000 - - - 8,990,000
employees (other than 15 August 2020
directors)
REGNER (B3R ZE2--£-81/HE
ZECZE\ATEA
33,480,000 29,890,000 - - (3,550,000) 59,820,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
directors, chief executives, or their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO)
or which were required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.66 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and
substantial shareholders as herein disclosed, the directors are
not aware of any persons who as at 31 December 2010 were
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of
the voting power at general meetings of the Company and
who were able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes
with the Company or may compete with the business of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company for the period from 1 January
2010 to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)
Cui Jian

Xu Shu Yi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pao Ping Wing

Tam Kwok Hing

Lo King Man

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr.
Xu Shu Yi & Mr. Lo King Man will retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years from their
appointment dates.

Each of the independent non-executive directors was appointed
for a period of two years commencing from their appointment
dates.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 of the notes to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 31 of the notes to the financial
statements, the connected transactions are exempted from
the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirement pursuant to the GEM Listing Rule 20.23.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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TEREARES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEERER
The board of directors of the Company believes that corporate AR FEESREDEEAAKRRFKNAEH

governance is essential to the success of the Company and has - W B HREVSIBE#E - EREE SIZEND
adopted various measures to ensure that a high standard of ¥EEJA - AARIEHRAWETEIZER ETARAAT
corporate governance is maintained. The Company has applied EH % E A FE AT RIPH 8+ RETE 2 163 °
the principles and complied with the requirements set out in

the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG code”)

contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS EEETZESRS
The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding HZE-ZT—ZF+-A=+—HIt+ @A

directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months [ AR FIEEFAIZER EMRAIES5.48%5.67
ended 31 December 2010 as set out in GEM Listing Rules (B ESEETELELRSGZHE - AR AE A
5.48 to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Z2BER(EHETFTEN AQTTMEBET
the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non- fAITETEHREZETELFRRINMBZEER
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding & °

the securities transactions by Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS g9

The board of directors of the Company comprises: RAREFGKREBIE:

Executive Directors ' Hung Yung Lai HiITEFE ARRLAS
Cui Jian EER
Xu Shu Yi RETE

Independent Non-executive © Pao Ping Wing BIIBITEE CORmE

Directors : Tam Kwok Hing COHKBEE

Lo King Man O ERX
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) EEg(#)
During the year, ten full board meetings were held and the FR  ARFAB T Az EEEeL:E SEF
attendance of each director is set out as follows : RO E R
Number of
Board meetings
attended Attendance
in 2010 rate
—2-FF
HEEESEE
Name of director EEHE RE HE=R
Hung Yung Lai AR RN 10/10 100%
Cui Jian B B 10/10 100%
Xu Shu Yi IRETE 8/10 80%
Pao Ping Wing MRS 8/10 80%
Tam Kwok Hing HEE 8/10 80%
Lo King Man ERX 8/10 80%

The board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions. Daily operations and administration are
delegated to the management.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for the period. As the
Group had net assets as at 31 December 2010, the Board does
not foresee any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
the Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern
approach in preparing the financial statements.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai. The
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and assumed by two separate individuals who have
no relationship with each other. The Chairman of the board
is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
board, while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects
effectively.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.
Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Chan Kam Fai, no
replacement of the post of the chief executive officer has been
fixed as at 31st December 2010. The Board strives to find the
suitable candidates within and outside the Group. The Board
will keep reviewing the current structure from time to time.
If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience is
identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the post
of chief executive officer as appropriate.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
period of two years commencing from their appointment
dates. The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from the three Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that
all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
within the definition of the GEM Listing Rules.

EFERATHAE

ARABERERERBEL - TERTHRARN
AE R HRAE N (EEAYE b2 HE
RBEENBER - EFSTRAERETIE BK
EESAMMENR MITHARRNER TED
BRI EE AR EE T EAER-

REBECEERTREA2 MR FRANES - /&
HITRAEZMNACEARD X TEH— AR
RRT ETFERTBRAHHABRERBFERTE
WIAEESIH - BERIBIBLERE R BEZ
Z-TF+-_A=+—HIt THRAEBL—
ERZ - EEERBNREERIINERSEA
B-EFRMEETERTBMNRER BEH
BHEE MR- R g AR ARRER
EE R DR TR BB =R

BYFATES

EBYFATEENIHHZEAHES R
ME-ARACEEZ=RBIUFATESFR
BAIZER EHRAIES.096BE s FEB M
BRE-EFGCHEREZBIN  YHEER
BEVFNTESHBAIRR EMRNARE
ZBI AL
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS = = Hr o

The Remuneration Committee was formed in November 2005 ¥ MZE€XK VR _ZTHF+—A BER
to review the overall remuneration of Directors. One meeting & EHITEZEEHH - U TR EHNELZKE
was held during the year and attendance of each member is set  AJ ) fF & ¢

out as follows:

Number of
meetings Attendance
attended rate
Name of member RE HESBRH o =R
Hung Yung Lai, Chairman RIS R 1/1 100%
Pao Ping Wing MRS 1/1 100%
Tam Kwok Hing HE R 1/1 100%
Lo King Man ERX 1/1 100%
NE@EL SNEEHESFMETImESE

At the meeting held, remuneration of directors for the S
Company was reviewed and discussed. e

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION Z AN

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the F R RNARTZEANIEE) o BI=ME 5 5HAD
Company's auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as {THIBHE 20T

follows:
Fees paid/
payable
Services rendered KR e EAER
HKD'000
B TF T
Audit services 1% ER 7% 450
Non audit services i.e. taxation IEZE R (BRI ) 0
450

28 SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s internal control system during
the year. The Company convened meetings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Directors are of the view that the
key areas of the Group’s internal control system are reasonably
implemented with rooms for improvement. The Group will use
its endeavor to implement changes in order to further improve
the Group's internal control system.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 27
August 2001, with terms of reference in compliance with the
requirements as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group and to provide advice
and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors. 4 meetings were held
during the year and the attendance of each member is set out

P &P BE 2

FA ARACERAEEZANEZEZRDN
BERUEMFARE - AR EHEHSHTWE
BEE 2EEERARER URRREEY
EE-EERR AEERNERRAGzIZHE
BEASEHET ENARE=ME A REHER
RENETES BRE-THELAKEZR

BRESIE R4 -

ARAR-BE—FNA-T LRI BRE
B®  LRAIRIR AR RIS 285331558
ENEAETABENE - BREAGNEE
BERBH REEREAONH2HEFRA
BEEHE LAEFRRARERER

ERE-ZUBIIFNTE
CERRBERFARABTTHRER 8KE

as follows:
Number of

meetings Attendance

attended rate
Name of member RE HESBREHE =
Mr. Pao Ping Wing MR ES 4/4 100%
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing B 3/4 75%
Mr. Lo King Man ERX 4/4 100%
During the meetings held, financial results of the Company was R & - S E B H R EBEMNT K REHETT
reviewed and discussed. BESSES K
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF SING LEE SOFTWARE
(GROUP) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 33 to 112, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2010, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 % BRD R

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

BBV EE
BEZRENRBES2ER HZEHREH
BHEELE E'I*E}FE%LA A 9015

ERET (EAEEBIRETEZER MAH
FREEMBR TEMIRARE ZRD - HT
ﬁﬁi\ﬁﬁ}\iﬁfﬁﬁﬁi‘ﬁﬂff ETEERE

B PR AR BRI AT E % o M#+H‘J§A3§ﬁ‘k
#Lfﬁﬁrﬁ%ﬁriﬂ)&%&ﬁgﬁ LA & 12 78 7E Ut
EREVBRENRE N EB T ERERE

L o

5 4

EZEEETRFANGRGSMIERERME
CHEABEBEEEAMNERRE - BRNZE
RFF AR T2 BED R H 8 - SR R IRGE
KR MERF A M ERRFEERH R
B o 1E AT (4 7% 5 E e - AR BT E B A
AmBEEE R FHIRER ZHRE M B HERAA
FAHONBPESIE - BRI EE M B REF  BA I
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B M BRI

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2010, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a net loss of RMB63,664,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2010. This condition, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicates the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast doubt about the
Company's and the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements on 26 March 2010.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RETEWEX

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—ZF—FF+-H=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
iokza AR¥Fr AREFT
(Restated)
(&E75))
Revenue HE WA 7 15,435 41,417
Cost of sales 5B B (19,360) (31,957)
Gross (loss) profit (E#B)EA (3,925) 9,460
Other income E b A 939 2,107
Other gains H b Uz 8 17,327 23
Distribution and selling expenses DHEHNEEER (3,674) (2,169)
Administrative expenses EIEEBH (16,139) (9,210)
Allowance on trade receivables JEUE 5 IR e (6,310) (925)
Research and development costs Bt B A AR (4,476) -
Impairment loss on intangible EAERAEEIE
assets 16 (2,950) (309)
Loss on initial recognition of IR RRIEE REE
warrant subscription rights 518 26 (43,132) -
Finance costs BEER 9 (481) (524)
Loss before tax BREAIEE (62,821) (1,547)
Income tax expense Fr8fiA X 10 843 -
Loss for the year KEEEE 11 (63,664) (1,547)
Other comprehensive income H 2 m W 2%
Exchange differences arising on MEELECERZRE
translation - 1,416
Total comprehensive expense AFEELHMAXERE
for the year (63,664) (131)
Loss per share BRER
— basic (RMB cents) —ER(AREKS) 14 (8.42) (0.23)
— diluted (RMB cents) —¥E (AR¥5) 14 (10.39) (0.23)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

At 31 December 2010 R-ZFE—FF+_-H=+—H

34

31 December 1 January
+=ZA=+-H 2009
2010 2009 ZEENF
—E-ZF —TTNE —A—H
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARKEFIT AREFor AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z5) (&)
Non-current Assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE - BE REH 15 2,312 458 750
Intangible assets B EE 16 - 4,886 7,504
2,312 5,344 8,254
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 17 857 4,922 5314
Trade and other receivables R 5 I E M Bk R 18 9,773 21,103 8,991
Loan receivable FEWE TR 19 4,269 - -
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 20 9,623 - -
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNES 21 35,926 5,063 2,821
60,448 31,088 17,126
Current Liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables ENEZREMER 22 12,077 15,418 9,003
Amount due to a director ENESHIE 23 297 301 128
Amount due to a shareholder e IR R K18 24 11 12 12
Tax liabilities BBAaE 527 - -
Borrowings BE 25 - 18,551 16,805
Derivative financial liability TELRMEE 26 27,763 - -
40,675 34,282 25,948
Net Current Assets (Liabilities) FHEEE (E8F)FE 19,773 (3,194) (8,822)
Total Assets less Current EEABRADEE
Liabilities 22,085 2,150 (568)
Capital and reserves ERREE
Share capital (L& 27 8,132 6,827 6,827
Reserves 1 13,953 (4,677) (7,395)
Equity attributable to the owners ~ AARHHE AEHED
of the Company 22,085 2,150 (568)
The consolidated financial statements on pages 33 to 112 were  EB33EF112BFT#MGRATHRENLESE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on R ZZT——F =8 =+ /\ B #t/E R E#E T -
28 March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIATRERZSE:
Hung Yung Lai Xu Shu Yi
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
EY EZE
RE B8 ®raeE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EREREH X

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—ZF

— = fE4—ALEE

Statutory Share
Share Share surplus Translation options  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RE ROBE EERHHEE Eifie  BRERE 2itER At
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
E&Ffr E¥Ffr  AEEFr  AREFr  AEETr  AEEFr AREFx
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E31) (E31)
At 1 January 2009 as originally  R=FENE-F—H"
stated BRI 6,827 72,651 3,613 3,801 - (87,460) (568)
Correction of accounting error ~ EIERAFE 2 &3t E
of prior years (note 3) (H#3) - - - - 5,392 (5,392) -
At 1 January 2009 (restated) ~ RZFTAE-F—A
(E71) 6,827 72,651 3613 3,801 5392 (92,852) (568)
Loss for the year (note 3) REEEB(HH3) - - - - - (1,547) (1,547)
Exchange differences arisingon  BEEEZEHEB R
translation and other REREMEENS
comprehensive income for
the year - - - 1,416 - - 1416
Total comprehensive expense for R4 2 f %1258
the year - - - 1,416 - (1,547) (131)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ HRBKELE NN
share-based payments BERRFH - - - - 2,849 - 2,849
At 31 December 2009 (restated) WZTENFTZA
=+-8 (&) 6,827 72,651 3,613 5217 8,241 (94,399) 2,150
Loss for the year and total TEERBRAEES
comprehensive expense for EEEt
the year - - - - - (63,664) (63,664)
Recognition of equity-settled HXTE%%:LAHX
share-based payments Fﬁﬁ"ﬁ - - - - 3,175 - 3,175
Issue of ordinary shares BfTEEk ‘ 1,305 81,384 - - - - 82,689
Transaction costs attributable ~ E/TRH EER KA
to issue of shares - (2,265) - - - - (2,265)
1,305 79,119 - - 3,175 - 83,599
At 31 December 2010 R-B-5%
+-A=1+-H 8,132 151,770 3,613 5217 11,416 (158,063) 22,085
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies
Act”), share premium is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of share premium and
capital reserve if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital account.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
maintain two statutory reserves, being an enterprise expansion
fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which are non-
distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out
of net profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and
allocation basis are decided by their respective boards of
directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be
used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation
issue. The enterprise expansion fund is used for expanding the
capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation
issue.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—ZF

— = fE4—ALEE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF AREFoT
(Restated)
(E3)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Loss before tax B 7 AT ES 18 (62,821) (1,547)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs BMEER 481 524
Interest income FEMA (415) (20)
Depreciation of property, plant TEE BWEK
and equipment RBITE 219 385
Amortisation of intangible ML EE#E
assets 1,936 2,618
Impairment loss on mEERERE
intangible assets 2,950 309
Allowance on trade receivables EUE 5 R EE 6,310 925
Impairment loss recognised on EERTEREERE
inventories 3,939 236
Equity-settled share-based % 4 45 B LARR 19
payment expenses REBNZAXZ 3,175 2,849
Fair value on investments BIEEBEREANE
held for trading (1,713) -
Fair value on derivative financial MEcHEBEAAE
liability (15,325) -
Gain on disposal of property, HETHE BE R
plant and equipment B - (23)
Initial recognition of warrant e T SR R M 58 FR R
subscription rights T 43,132 -
Operating cash flows before EEEXAEHAZ
movements in working capital RERER (18,132) 6,256
Decrease in inventories FERD 126 156
Decrease (increase) in trade and B E F N E MR
other receivables A (18 hn) 5,020 (13,525)
(Decrease) increase in trade and e B 5 M EAMERR
other payables (k) 3% hn (3,346) 6,767
Increase in investments BIEEBEREE N
held for trading (7,910) -
Cash used in operations KEFFAES (24,242) (346)
Income tax paid EFTEH (316) -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHTAZREFHE
ACTIVITIES (24,558) (346)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFE

38

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FrT AREFT
(Restated)
(&E31)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEE
Interest received B U F & 415 20
Loan to a third party BERFE=ZH (4,269) -
Purchase of property, plant and BETIE WEMEE
equipment (2,073) (121)
Proceeds form disposal of HETBE - BE M&#H
property, plant and equipment FFr 153018 - 51
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZBAZ
ACTIVITIES REFH (5.927) (50)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Proceeds from borrowings EEMEHIA 188 1,746
Repayment of borrowings BEBE (18,739)
Interest paid BB (204) (524)
Proceeds from issue of BTE BTG HIA
ordinary shares 78,583 -
Expenses on issue of BT EMARG
ordinary shares (2,265) -
Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRBREE 5B 4,062 -
Expenses on issue of warrants BITRREERX (277) -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING METHFESRSFER
ACTIVITIES 61,348 1,222
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBESEEYZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS B 30,863 826
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SFHZHL2RELZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5,063 2,821
Effect of foreign exchange INEEERZE
rate changes - 1,416
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SFARZESRELSZEY
AT END OF THE YEAR
represented by: Bl
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 35,926 5,063
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—ZF—FF+-H=+—HILFE

GENERAL

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The address of its registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed "Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are development and sales of
software products, sales of related hardware products and
provision of software-related technical support services.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) incurred a loss
of RMB63,664,000 for the year ended 31 December
2010. In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s financial and liquidity position, and taken into
consideration of the following factors:

e ongoing financial support by an ultimate shareholder
of the Company;

e  cost control measures; and

e possible additional external funding.
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DA EBEORBEBMAXZMARRA
BIERET -ARBEMMER LT EE
BN FR(RTER ] —BHRE-
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ARRAREMBRARZINEER -

ARAREWMBLR (RHEAKE]) X
BRFUMHEMREREE HEMRRBE
1 B an M AR 80 1 AE R T SR IR IS 5%
i%o

EREAEEE 2 EE

BRAVBRERCRBERLERERE K
RAIREWBAR (KB IAE®])EE
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B AR #63,664,0007T © £ 47 Sl 47 & B 7%
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 2. mEGEUBMR 2 EE (&)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company believe that, taking into RAREZRE KERELMERE K&
account of the above factors, the Group will be able to = 15 75 82 0 PR AT R 2R AE B 7 A 2 B HR B
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due for BEZEFIE At S BHRETIER
the foreseeable future, and accordingly, have prepared the FEEEREERS -

consolidated financial statement on a going concern basis.

CORRECTION FOR ACCOUNTING ERROR OF 3. BIEBEIFE 2G5 RE

PRIOR YEARS

In prior years, the Group did not follow IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment to account for share options granted to
employees after 7 November 2002 and vested on or after
1 January 2005. The prior period errors are corrected
by retrospective restatement to increase share options
reserve and accumulated losses as at 1 January 2009
by RMB5,392,000 and to restate the result for the year
ended 31 December 2009 from profit for the year of
RMB1,302,000 to loss for the year of RMB1,547,000
with the recognition of share-based payment expenses
amounting to RMB2,849,000. The recognition of this
share-based payment expenses resulted in cost of sales,
distribution and selling expenses, and administrative
expenses (excluding allowance on trade receivables and
impairment loss on intangible assets) for the year ended
31 December 2009 being restated from RMB31,049,000,
RMB1,943,000 and RMB7,495,000 to RMB31,957,000,
RMB2,169,000 and RMB9,210,000 respectively. The basic
and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2009 of RMB0.20 cents are restated to the basic
and diluted loss per share of RMBO0.23 cents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 4. BRI REBITSTEL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

New and revised Standards and Interpretations REAFERRAZHIRLIETEARRE
applied in the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the REE - AEBZEAUTHBEE

following new and revised Standards, Amendments and BlZ B g MM 2 3a] R aT@EE\'J‘{za

Interpretations (“new and revised IFRSs”) issued by the RARRE (3] RICISETRR B s 3 5 2%

International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"). A1)

IFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled IP?EW‘# LER EENE2HEENRG B
Share-based Payment F25% (BT K) ERARRZS
Transactions

IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)  Business Combinations EREEREERENR CEAH

(ﬁA_Y SNEEL)

IAS 27 (as revised in 2008)  Consolidated and Separate B e R E275 BARBURERE
Financial Statements ( AZERENFEBT])

IAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items BRestEal$39%  AEBYWEE

(1B3IK)

IFRSs (Amendment) Improvements to IFRSs issued IR B i s 22 “EENERHYHERY
in 2009 (BFTA) BREER 220k

IFRSs (Amendment) Amendments to IFRS 5 as B R B T R 2 B H BB R S AR B SE5
part of Improvements to ($B3IK) KB ERZET
IFRSs issued in 2008 NERBHBRY %S

EER 7 2 — 57

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash BRMERERE PEFREEETHEA
Assets to Owners ZEEER

The application of the new and revised IFRSs in the RAFE AR RS RTBIRR B i &

current year has had no material effect on the amounts HANHZERAVBREER2EER

reported in these consolidated financial statements and/ RZEREMBERERAE c BEERT &

or disclosures set out in these consolidated financial BEREE-

statements.
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4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 4. FERFTTRZLBIIETER

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d) (%)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations EEMBERERZHITRLBITEINRR

issued but not yet effective Ve

The Group has not early applied the following new REBWREZREAUTEEMERER

and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet ZEET R ASAE ET BB B 7 i 4R A

effective:

IFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to IFRSs issued B B B 7 SR 5 2 B “Z-TERAHER
in 2010’ (BFTR) B HREE R B

IFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of BN BREENET B - E2cpdE
Financial Assets?® (BETAR)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments? Bl ﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ‘@% SEIA

IAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of BlBR & 5T A B 51257 EERE: KRB EE
Underlying Assets® (BFTR)

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures® BIR et 2R E24% kit

(as revised in 2009) (73/‘_7 TNEEE)

IAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Be it ERE325 i
Issues’ (fz HES)

IFRIC - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum BRyEREREZEe REESERIBAIE

(Amendments) Funding Requirement? -REZ14% (BK)

IFRIC — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial BRUBaREREZES ESIEERERAR
Liabilities with Equity -ZEE19%
Instruments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 ! R-ZE-ZFFL+H-—HAA=-FE——F—H—H

January 2011, as appropriate. (1) 3.2 14 B de 2 F /2 BB 4 34
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010. 2 RZF—FF+H—HRZEFHIEZ FERE
g

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. 3 RZF——F+H—HZEFHIEZ FEHE

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 4 RZF—=F—H—HZ#EFHIEZ FERE

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012. s RZF—ZF—H—HRZ#EFHIEZ FERE

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011. 6 R-ZF——F—H—Hat 2 EFH1E2 FEHE

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010. 7 RZF—FF-H—HEZERHIEZ FERE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in October 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Specifically, under IFRS 9, all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss. Specifically, under IFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

FE R #TR] R A&EFT St Rl

(%)
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B (&)

BRI BREERNEIRHTA (X
FNF+—A%BM) - %I)\T’\*E&;Hri%
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HEMBENRKLERAZRE-

AR s REERMEHREERNEIRR

oA RBER G EREIGR [/ T
B RN E] RANSREELRRE
AL AABEFE- AT S HP A

WEBEHRERERBNZHEEAME
B UREEASHREERSNEMNR
EERHRSRENEHRE —RIRER
ST IR EEK A E -FTEEMER
RERBRAREREE R HRROAE

S

ReMBEMS  BHEETRAALEBETTA
BEnseBaBErEREH AEEmE R
B EIRR B 7 TR 2 R S 99% Fﬁﬁﬁ%if@
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ZEERBREZH s eHEBEANEZY:
EHMEEK 2] EEE M2
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations
issued but not yet effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that IFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial
year ending 31 December 2013. The directors are in the
process of assessing the impact of the adoption of IFRS9.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised IFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for assets.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 5. FEEHE (£)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BEABRFIINTX

Basis of consolidation mER%E
The consolidated financial statements incorporate TEREMBRERE SN DA RARNRDBIE
the financial statements of the Company and entities flocER (AWBRAR) 2 MBmEk S

controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is ZHIEREARABENEEERB CUR
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the REBIE WAMEHEEBESH

financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

income and

All intra-group transactions, balances,

expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable

RERARBRLEZHB AR EXED
BURBEBLERAMEREEHEEMBHILE
(ER)FARGEEEEERA -

FIEREARRRIMZRS &k WA R
MR E ARRE 2 8EH-

HEBARR

HEWRAREREIERERBZ ARER
EERAEXRBERTHRHEESmNIIE

for goods sold and services provided in the normal course HREMEW 2 E WHRTNRHEE

of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes. FEEERIIE ©

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when all HEmiEWARTE T3 E &R

the following conditions are satisfied: R

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant o FEBEOKEREAECERNRARK
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; CREYLTET

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

s AFAEBEYVERE -REHBEERABZ
HEEMFETE RN EREIE:

o HEWAZREREENAEMAE:

k=)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 5. SITHE (&)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d) HEWARR (£)

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated o HEIFGHEBIKLENGRAERAR
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and £E8: Kk

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of hardware and software products
is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed upon customers’ acceptance.

Service income for provision of software-related technical
support is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).

5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary

5.

FEFIRE (&)
s ()

HERER AR RENRETSBREES
ZEAEZENEES 2 RN BT #E

items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in e
which they arise.
Borrowing costs BEERA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 5. SITHE (&)
Taxation (Cont’d) B\ (&)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary HRERMNB AR ZIREBB 2 ERTY

differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

BER BRIFAEETRHNEHEREZR
Z O 2 R AR R KA R
B TRAPEERAAESRER - BRFR
BELESERAIRERERMEEL
ERERIREE BN FIREH I B AR
BANEAEERSE=RLEREREREETR
R BB @ 1B T ERERR

EERBREEZEAMERESHREHRE
Bl YHIRENBA R ERT AN M
Wzl EEMLE-

EXEHABERABINRBANBEREE
EHEERER HMBERZHE (AR
EHMRAMCEMREE LEEMZHRE(
RBE) RERE)FTE -

ELEHRBRBEREEZFERRASER
BERARMAHH KOS EELEER
BEZEREZTAMEEZMBE

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount LuLTRIEE"TE SRR - bR IEH B AT A b
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in EPHNGERNEERBRAERZEES

profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

B EERBRT  BERIBIRED BN E
b2 E WS AR L E RN RARER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
V=R

Iy

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—ZF—FF+-H=+—HILFE

= B 5 W R MR

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

—  the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

5.

FETRE (&)
7&

FEEKARAZERFEMELEET
R o AR AR PR E

Financial instruments $RIA
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in ESEERAASRIAZ GG ZET
the consolidated statement of financial position when a AR cREERTRABERGEEVE

group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 5. FEE:HE (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) SRIA (&)
Financial assets (Cont’d) THEE (&)
Effective interest method B3 %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments, other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

ERMEEDAEEREE ZBHKA R

RAERE R D A B WA 27775 - BERA
RN AR RN EEZATFH
SEAZ B EERTRMAGF A RES
WK (BREBERERMETRIHRBNZ
—PENHEWRER X HRAREAM G
Bk EREFEINE-

BB TAZHBWATIRERR R SELE
BR EZXFEREEDBREANER
ARz HPF B AG AW e sk E B F
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 5. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d) EWMI A (E)

EHEE (&)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Cont’d) TREERNEFAEZ ()

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial e BRASESHEEMNAHREHI
BHEEMH—55 I B ERIZREH
BMHETER 3

instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or
e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective s EBERTHIBETEH AXEHPIANIT
as a hedging instrument. AT H-
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, BRARBEFABENSREERAAER
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement B MEFAEEENRAABEHAEE
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which AR ENER AN ERNIBEFRET A

BaBREARENTREERRZH

il

they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss

includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial B
assets.
Loans and receivables B R ELNIE

54

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loan receivable, trade
receivables, bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—ZF—FF+-H=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 5. FEE:HE (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) SRIA (&)
Financial assets (Cont’d) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets DREEME

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

TREE MHRAAEABREEIN 81
BEMREREDARETREZ A -
HEEBRBEERANIHEATHEERE
E-AXZEENF CEREEZMBTR
XETREXIFTE cREENBER
B

EREtMEREETERERETRE:
- BOAXEFIBIEAMBNE:
sk

— BHSRERFERASER X

BRAB RN ERETH B ER:

ng

- the disappearance of an active market for that — HRVWBREH SmEEBANGR
financial asset because of financial difficulties. M5 e

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period of 120-180 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables. For loan receivable, impairment of
the asset is assessed individually by reference to the credit
quality of individual party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 5. FEE:HEK (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) ERMITAE(E)
Financial assets (Cont’d) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) CHEERE (&)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loan receivable, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable and loan receivable are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and
other financial liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—ZF—FF+-H=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 5. EBE&&HUER (£&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) SWMIA(E)
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d) THEERKRK (F)
Effective interest method BB F%

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent financial liabilities
held for trading.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 5. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont'd) SWMIA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d) THEERKRK (F)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont'd) BRAABEFAEGZEHEE (F)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: WMETHNER 2RBENDERFBEE

=

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of e FECZERMBEZZERRNETAH
repurchasing in the near future; or REEE : 5k

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial e ERAEEERETEzUHMNeRmI
instruments that the Group manages together and BHEeEz—8n BAHEET BB
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit- B A B M AR R 5 Bk
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective e ERUIEIA(REERAEGEHY
as a hedging instrument. RYER 2 TAHN) -

Financial liabilities at FVTPL represent warrant subscription }*Qﬁfﬁﬁ‘l‘)\Tﬁf\T&Z‘i\%ﬁiET%ﬁ?‘éﬁﬁfz

rights which are measured at fair value, with changes in REEE - DIRAAERE  EPBHRERN

fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in EEECAANBEEYETEMEEL M

profit or loss in the period in which they arise. BEEREBERTER

Other financial liabilities Ezf G

Other financial liabilities including bank and other EemedE (BRRTEREMESR /&

borrowings, trade and other payables, amount due NEHEHMARR BN ESEHIERER

to a director and amount due to a shareholder are MRERRIE ) Hi2(E A BRI R HK

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the RABR o

effective interest method.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

5.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 5. FEEHE (£)

Share-based payment transactions DUBRBAERNSRRS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions RELAEUIRHHBEBRTRRS

Share options granted to employees after 7 November R-ZEE-F+—H+HAZERTESL

2002 and vested on or after 1 January 2005 RZFEFAF—HA A EEBZER
#

The fair value of services received determined by reference SERRLBEREARLBPZANEE

to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date EZBEWRBAARBEREBHANUERE

is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, PR WA (BRRERE) NEL

with a corresponding increase in equity (share options FEFEIE N o

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its RBERR NEBBITHENERER

estimates of the number of options that are expected to ZEREHE 2 Mt - RNEBHRNEBET

ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates free8 (E) TR Eaf R WHE

during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit M B VEAE IE 28 o

or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the REREETER LR EREREN

amount previously recognised in share options reserve will BMAZSHERERERDHE -2 BERE

be transferred to share premium. When the share options R B R Bk REmBIDRITE

are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised B SRR BREREANER 2B E

at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in BISEBRERE-

share options reserve will continued to be held in share
options reserve.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Cont’d)

Share options granted to employees on or before 7
November 2002

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess
of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which
lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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6. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 6. Atz FBEM 2 ETERE

62

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 5, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concurring the

future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk

FERAAEE 2G5 BER (R ESH)
o AR R EFAE KB HA IR ML IE
BB R2EERABREEFDB R
RF -t RAARRVIRBBELR R
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h

etz T REE ZEERF

UTRERKEBZEZBR LN HREH
REFHZ T EEEZHEMERRF EE
RERESEERBEZREER T B

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts BEERNEERFE-
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Allowance for doubtful debts YRR ZHERE

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability
and determines impairment of trade receivables and
loan receivable in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 5. Such estimation is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market conditions.
Management reviews the debtor settlement status
periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of allowance
for doubtful debts accordingly. If the customer’s financial
position were to deteriorate, actual impairment loss or
written off would be higher than estimated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—ZF—FF+-H=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. SHEWARDEER

AEBMUGEEEH HIBRBETRERNESR
HERFIBUBEAR AARRESES
(B4 B RE N ) 2MNERITERDE
REGEABERZER TAUSASHEE

the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of AT E sk PR B AR 7 o

The Group’s operations are organised based on the
different types of products sold and service provided.
Information reported to the Board of Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for

segment performance is also focused on types of goods or
services delivered or provided.

DEMBEERARER

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBREERERSBEADHERAR

results by operating and reportable segment: XEZ2OWMWET :
2010 —E-2F
Provision of
Software-
Sale of related
Sale of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
REtE4
HERK HENRE 2k
Em BHER X ERH &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETR
External sales and total HMEE RBHERA
revenue — segment revenue —DEHERA 1,867 903 12,665 15,435
SEGMENT RESULTS DEEE (3,643) (5,702) (27,655) (37,000)
Unallocated other income ROBEMKA 939
Unallocated other gains ROBEM Y 17,327
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEEERY (474)
Finance costs BHEER (481)
Loss on initial recognition of warrant  FIARER R IE E R B E
subscription rights ZEBR (43,132)
Loss before tax BRELAIE B (62,821)
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e MR AR MG

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. SHEWARDIER (&£)
(Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results (Cont'd) PHHEERARERE (&)
2009 (Restated) —EEAF (E5)
Provision of
Software-
Sale of related
Sale of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
R
HETMT HEIE Vil 3
Em BEHER SRR B

RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETX

External sales and total HOMEE REHERA

revenue — segment revenue - DEBHEEWA 1,605 13,697 26,115 41,417
SEGMENT RESULTS DEER (86) (970) (1,710) (2,766)
Unallocated other income ROBEEMBA 2,107
Unallocated other gains AP EEM Y 23
Unallocated corporate expenses AOEEERT (387)
Finance costs REER (524)
Loss before tax BRELAIE B (1,547)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are gLﬁj‘ﬁBZ JrEZMEEiW?ISFﬁL‘ZZFE
the same as the Group’s accounting policies as described R AER D HEEEBTLES
in note 5. Segment loss represents the loss from each i% SEBEER - %ﬂﬁ’*ﬁﬁwwﬂﬂ%éﬁm
segment without allocation of directors’ remuneration, BE2EBEE KoBREMKAREMKE
finance costs, loss on initial recognition of warrant TEDEZER BIERMESERKEAZ
subscription rights, unallocated other income and other REHMZEE EHRERIFERER
gains. This is the measure reported to the chief operating HoAREERABEDHBERILIETHM
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation mEBEBARANEREDREERETHERE
and performance assessment. No segment information on AemEr AT EZHRZEER -

assets and liabilities is presented as such information is not
regularly reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+-H=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. HEWARDIER (&£)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information Hith o BEH
2010 —E-ZEF
Provision of
software-
Sale of related
Sale of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
RHE4
HEBH HEHB BB
ER BHER YERY CL

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETZT ARETZ

Amounts included in the measure of BERFEIBEEZ
segment loss: A

Depreciation of property, plant and THE BELRENE

equipment 26 13 180 219
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEZH 234 13 1,589 1,936
Allowance on trade receivables EWE 5 R EE 763 369 5,178 6,310
Impairment loss recognised on ERRAEEAEESR

inventories - 3,939 - 3,939
Impairment loss recognised on ERAEFEERERSRE

intangible assets - - 2,950 2,950
Share-based payment expenses DR BEREHHZ 376 180 2,532 3,088
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. HEWARDIER (&£)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d) HitppHER (&)
2009 —EEAF
Provision of
software-
Sale of related
Sale of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
R
HETMT HEIEH Vil 3
Em BEHER SRR B

RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETX

Amounts included in the measure of BERTED BN IE

segment profit or loss: BB
Depreciation of property, TBE BERSETE

plant and equipment 15 127 243 385
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH 101 866 1,651 2,618
Gain on disposal of property, PETBE  BE RS

plant and equipment e 1 7 15 23
Allowance on trade receivables B E B E 36 306 583 925
Impairment loss recognised on ERATERESE

inventories - 236 - 236
Impairment loss recognised on ERREREERERR

intangible assets - - 309 309
Share-based payment expenses D BEBRNFAZ 109 942 1,798 2,849
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—ZF—FF+-H=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. SHEWARDIBER (&)
(Cont’d)
Revenue from major products and services: RETEEMRBRBZHEHEKRA:
2010 2009
—B-BF —TTAF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AREFTT ARETT

Software products BH4Em
POS-MIS V2.0 POS-MIS V2.0 1,701 1,434
Sing Lee payment management AT RERZH1.0
system 1.0 166 171
1,867 1,605
Hardware products WHEMm
NUTRIT293 Key board NUTRIT2934 £ 225 174
Vefifone5150+PP1000 Vefifone5150+PP1000 216 447
Others HAt 462 13,076
9203 13,697
Provision of software-related RERFHEBERN
technical support services T ERE
Development Gk 4,252 3,310
Maintenance & 8,413 22,805
12,665 26,115
15,435 41,417
Geographical information wEER
The Group's revenue from external customers is all from REBRBINKREP ZHERABRKE
customers located in PRC. FEREINERF -
All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC REERMBIRBDEEREEMEMS D
by location of assets. B RPBIER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. HEWARDEER (&)
(Cont’d)
Information about major customers FEEFER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HBEFEREEFP ZHEWABRRBBET
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are SEAEE10%W T
as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZERNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Fr AR For
Customer A’ BEPA 1,776 N/AA i 32
Customer B' =B 1,571 N/AZ i 2
Customer C' BHC N/AT & F2 5,294
3,347 5,294
L Revenue from maintenance services in provision of software-related ! HE WA B A BIR TR R & R
technical support services. 2 HEERTS
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 2 THEHEEBMABTRMIY EEBAEBMBHE10% °

sales of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+-H=+—HIFE

8. OTHER GAINS 8. Hfitblyz
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(&%)
Fair value gain on derivative financial MEeMAaEZ
liability ARERER 15,325 -
Fair value gain on investments BHIEEEREZ
held for trading N ERE 1,713 -
Net foreign exchange gain P 5 W a5 5 289 -
Gain on disposal of property, HETBE BER
plant and equipment B0l - 23
17,327 23
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEEH
2010 2009
—E2-2F ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR FIT
Expenses on issue of warrants BATRREE I 277 -
Interest on bank and other borrowings HARAFRNEHEEZR
wholly repayable within five years TREMEBEZFNE 204 524
481 524
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+_-H=+—HIFE

70

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. PSR

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREFT
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") PR EMEN
([eEmBER])
— Current year —AKFEE 527 -
— Under provision in prior years - BREFEREIR 316 -
843 -

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was
established in Hangzhou, PRC, with applicable tax rate
of 25%. In 2010, Singlee Technology is a High and New
Technology Enterprise defined by Zhejiang Finance Bureau,
Administrator of Local Taxation of Zhejiang Municipality
and Zhejiang Municipal office of the State Administration
of Taxation and therefore is entitled to 15% preferential
tax rate from PRC EIT for three years starting from 2010.
Accordingly, the tax rate for Singlee Technology is 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2010.

According to the New PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law,
the applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee Software
Company Limited (“Singlee Software”), Singlee Software
(Zhuhai) Company Limited (“Singlee Zhuhai”) and Beijing
Century Financial Knowledge Company Limited (“Beijing
Century”) is 25% for the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2009.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2009.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d) 10. FRERiIEX (&)
The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before REEBRIBZ HEGS 2EBRTZ 2B
tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive ATE 18 2 HRRIA T -
income as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR FT AREFT
(Restated)
(Z5)
Loss before tax FRELRTEE (62,821) (1,547)
Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate A ZEMEMHTEI15%
at 15% (2009: 25%) (note) (ZZ2TNF:25%)
AREZHIES L (#aE) (9.423) (387)
Tax effect of income not taxable TR RBRAZ BB &
for tax purpose (12) (74)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAIHBRAL BB E
for tax purpose 1,174 1,651
Effect of different tax rates of group SEHEBUNETRzZE
entities 4,234 (533)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAMAEREE 2
difference not recognised Migge 1,537 250
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERMIBEEZ
MiGE & 3,017 1,016
Utilisation of tax losses previously A 2 AT RER
not recognized TIEE 18 - (1,923)
Under provision in respect of prior years @ G E & #H T2 316 -
Tax charge for the year REEBIBZ L 843 -
Note:  Applicable income tax rate of 15% (2009: 25%) represents the B BAMSHBEERIS% (ZETNF:25%)F

relevant income tax rate of Singlee Technology, the subsidiary of

AREME AR MBR 2 MRS R
FRBRBAEBEEERNBD ERTOER

the Company which generates majority of the Group’s assessable
profit.

RBERR AEBNABDABBEER
ANE#24,176,0007T (ZZEZNF : ARK
4,064,0007T ) -+ AT AR YE K 85 R 0% FI &2 7]
HRE R E8EAR16,714,000L (= F
T NF: AR ¥6,465,0000T) c KREAH 2
REEBEN-_T—AFIH - AR EX
e TE FE AR B A ] RE SR A 2 Bt
HEERTARERERE WAEET KR
RERABDANBEERITIIRERE5E
RIEEFIEEE -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB24,176,000 (2009: RMB4,064,000),
available for offset against future profits and deductible
temporary differences of RMB16,714,000 (2009:
RMB6,465,000). The unused tax losses would be expired
in 2015. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the unused tax losses and the deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses and the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. XFEEEIE

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging and

crediting the following items:

AEEBRCDIBR LA TIISE:

2010 2009
—E-EF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥BFTT AR For
(Restated)
(E3)
Salaries, wages and other staff benefits #FH& - TEMEME TEF 9,525 6,715
Retirement benefits scheme contribution & K48 7l 51 2 7% 2,069 1,517
Equity-settled share-based payment & # & B AR A
expenses AEMAREAX 3,175 2,849
Total staff costs (note) BITRALLEE (M) 14,769 11,081
Depreciation of property, plant and THE - BER&EITE
equipment 219 385
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEEEE
(included in cost of sales) (FFASEEKA) 1,936 2,618
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 384 282
Operating lease rentals in respect of B@EREN
rental premises LEHERS 2,032 1,041
Impairment loss recognised on ERRFEREES
inventories (included in cost of sales) (ETASHEKAK) 3,939 236
Cost of inventories recognised as an WRERI CFERAR
expense 4,694 12,732
Interest income FEMA (415) (20)
Government grants 5 I %8 B
— subsidy related to products —EmlaL (300) -
— value-added tax refunds —IBER R (224) (298)
Write back of trade and other payables Gl fEHE 5 K& H ithBR 5k - (1,092)
Sundry income LSRN - (697)
Note:  Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs. Wi ZBEMESEFALME TRA-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+-H=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 12. EEM &
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 6 ENENTAE (ZZEZNF: N4E)
(2009: 6) directors were as follows: EEZAZHMEL T
2010
—2-%F
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
scheme payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
REEE
RIKEF BARR 7 5 B A
ik e HE K3 RREX @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT AEETT ARE TR ANRETFR ARETT
Executive directors HIES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RRAIE & - 63 3 - 66
Mr. Cui Jian ERGE - 63 3 - 66
Mr. Xu Shu Yi kS - 63 3 - 66
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing LS 63 - - 29 92
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEELE 63 - - 29 92
Mr. Lo King Man ERXAE 63 - - 29 92
189 189 9 87 474
2009
“ZETHhE
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
scheme payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
REEE
RINER WARR 17 2L B
ik e SRR ARAX @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT ARKEFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai R LE - 63 3 - 66
Mr. Cui Jian ERAAE - 63 3 - 66
Mr. Xu Shu Yi ¥k Fitd - 63 3 - 66
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BREEE 63 - - - 63
Mr. Tam Kwok Hing HEELE 63 - - - 63
Mr. Lo King Man EEXEE 63 - - - 63

189 189 9 - 387
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

During the two years ended 31 December 2010, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any remunerations for the two
years ended 31 December 2010.

13. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, none
of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group was a director of the Company. The emoluments of
the five individuals were as follows:

12. B/ & (&)

BHE_Z-—TF+_A=+—HILMEF
B AKEYEOEFAESINHIMER
UGV SUR PPN SE S 1)
HERERERB 2 AE - BEEFTHE
FEEREHEZE T —TFT_A=+—
B 1E R 2 2 R E

13.EEf &

HE-_Z—ZFR_ZFTThhF+=A
=T —HLEFE AEBREESHTAT
BHIWARTEE - AEReH AL 2O
ST

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZTThF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ T AR F T

(Restated)

(&)

Salaries e 1,379 1,317

Retirement benefits scheme contributions & K48 F 5T 2| £ 3% 173 144
Equity-settled share-based P e 45 B AR A7)

payment expenses BRERNFAXZ 541 1,020

2,093 2,481

Their emoluments were individually within the
HK$1,000,000 band.

During the two years ended 31 December 2010, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE

ARBEBEANEEERERNREEERT
BN BUERRTE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFT
(Restated)
(FeE7))
Loss B
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per REFTESREAREE 2
share (loss for the year attributable BB (ARAHE ARG
to owners of the Company) FREE) (63,664) (1,547)
Effect of dilutive warrant subscription BEarERRiEsRER
rights: ZHE:
— Fair value gain on warrant subscription —RIXAEBE RERE
rights DA ERE (15,325) -
Loss for the purpose of diluted AEFTESREEBE
loss per share 518 (78,989) (1,547)
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
‘000 ‘000
TR Fhg
Number of shares BRHEAR
Weighted average number of ordinary RIEHEBREAEEZ
shares for the purpose of basic loss per 3@ A% A0# F 158
share 756,482 663,200
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares EEFEET E LB 2
— warrant subscription rights TE-RREZRERE 3,529 -
Weighted average number of ordinary REstEoREEEE 2
shares for the purpose of diluted loss per & 3 i% hn#E S 15 #5
share 760,011 663,200
Annual Report 2010 —Z—ZFFH




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS RaR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Cont’d) 14. BREE (&)

76

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2010 does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s outstanding 2002 Option and 2010 August
Option (as defined in note 28) as the exercise prices of
those options are higher than the average market price
of shares for 2010. The computation of diluted loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2010 also does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding 2007
Option and 2010 January Option (as defined in note 28)
as the assumed exercise of 2007 Option and 2010 January
Option would result in the decrease of loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2009 does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s outstanding 2002 Option and 2007 Option
as the exercise prices of those options are higher than the
average market price of shares for 2009.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—

=

=

TE A=t —AUFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. TBE BERRKRE

Computer Other
Leasehold and related office Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE ElR it
NELE HBRE WAERE ] &it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AREFT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT
CosT 7%
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF-F—A 2,861 2,480 1,993 946 8,280
Additions bl - 112 9 - 121
Reclassification Ry - 583 (583) - -
Disposals BE (507) - (208) (53) (768)
At 31 December 2009 RIZENETZA=T-H 2,354 3,175 121 893 7,633
Reclassification ENH - 640 (1,030) 390 -
Additions Em - 719 1,354 - 2,073
At 31 December 2010 R-E-Z5+-A=+-H 2,354 4,534 1,535 1,283 9,706
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2009 R=ZENE-HA-H 2,861 2,176 1,606 887 7,530
Provided for the year FEER - 95 231 59 385
Reclassification ENE - 583 (583) - -
Eliminated on disposals REEREHH (507) - (180) (53) (740)
At 31 December 2009 RIZENETZA=T-H 2,354 2,854 1,074 893 7175
Reclassification EHE - 51 (76) 25 -
Provided for the year FEER - 90 129 - 219
At 31 December 2010 R-B-BF+2A=1-R 2,354 2,995 1,127 918 7,394
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2010 R-E-F5+-F=+-H - 1,539 408 365 2,312
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZNE+-A=1-A - 321 137 - 458
At 1 January 2009 R-ZThF-A-R - 304 387 59 750
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 15. TBIE -EKHE (&)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of MEREENTHE BEERBEEE Z
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful HET A A F RN ESEE N5 F XM
lives and after taking into account of their estimated SHEB A - W B FF R E A E RIS EE

residual value, using straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of EyERs Fish=3
the term of FEHR 554

lease or 5 years (LABRES & A %)

Computer and related equipment 18%-30% B & AB R R 18%Z%E30%
Other office equipment 18% Aty 37N =R 18%
Motor Vehicles 18% B3 iy 18%
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 6. B E=E

Development

costs
HEEH
RMB’000
AR¥FT
CoST B
At 1 January 2009, RZZEENF—HA—H"
31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 Z—ZZEZAF+_A=+—"HK
—E-FTF+-HA=+—H 12,889
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B RRE
At 1 January 2009 R_ZEZENF—HA—H 5,076
Charge for the year IREHDR 2,618
Impairment loss recognised RERBERERE
in the year 309
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZEhRF+=ZA=1+—H 8,003
Charge for the year REHR 1,936
Impairment loss recognised NEMRREER
in the year 2,950
At 31 December 2010 R-ZFE—ZEF+=-A=+—H 12,889
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZTF+=-A=+-—H -
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZERF+ZA=1+—H 4,886
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—H—H 7,504

Wi R-Z—Z2F BRENEEBEFEEFEE
ZJSZ%F'IEE TRBETEANRARAE
% Bt ARFEAEL 2 BURERE -

Note: In 2010, the directors reconsidered the development capitalised
in prior years and believed that it would not be utilised in the
Company's business, accordingly, the Company has provided full
amount of impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—F—FF+ - =+—HIFFE

As at 31 December 2009, the directors had assessed the
sales forecast and plan of hardware products and were
in the opinion that inventories would be sold above the
cost and no significant impairment loss on inventories for
the year ended 31 December 2009 was made. As at 31
December 2010, the directors have changed its business
plan to focus its resources on the development projects
of mobile payment business and mobile e-commerce and
adjust the sales forecast and plan of both the software
products and related hardware products. In the opinion
of the directors, certain of the related hardware products
as at 31 December 2010 might not be sold above the

17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
31 December 1 January
+=ZA=+—-8H 2009
2010 2009 ZEENEF
—E-FF ZEENF —A—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT AREFT
Finished goods 2R fn 857 4,922 5,314

RZBEZENF+ZA=+—HB EFEF
HEREEREGERHETEA RS-
WRAEFEKIIRSAKADLE  #BIER
HE-_ZTENF+-_A=+—"HILEE
VTEEAREBE - R_TE—ZTF+=A
=+ —H EZEFHEEXBKIHE HER
SHPRARFRINEBREBHEFEE
FMEIEAARFAERGEREEREEGE
mZEEBEARE -EERAE GTH
BEtERR _Z2—EF+_H=+—
HEBR HFEAREEKRTIERARE
3,939,000t 2 fF BB EE1E -

cost and accordingly, impairment loss on inventories of
RMB3,939,000 is recognised in cost of sales during the
year .

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EIWNE 5 & HABRX

31 December 1 January

+=HB=+—-H 2009

2010 2009 —ETNF

—E-Zf —ZETNF —fF—H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT AREFT AREFT

Trade receivables FEUWE ZER R 16,339 22,165 9,401
Less: allowance for doubtful debts & - RER & (7,885) (1,575) (650)
8,454 20,590 8,751

Prepayments TBRTER R 1,319 513 240
9,773 21,103 8,991
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18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Customers are generally granted with credit period
ranging from 120-180 days. The Group may, on a case by
case basis and after evaluation of the business relationship
and creditworthiness, extend the credit period upon
customer’s request. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group conducts research on the creditworthiness of
the new customer and assesses the potential customer'’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date
of trade receivables net of allowances at the end of the
reporting period:

18. BB Z R EMRNK (&)

BTEPZEEH—HBNF1202180K T
Lo RNEEAIZRERNBSRATHEBERR
EEE BEFERKEREER -TEMNE
B, -AEEGRENELP2EE
R BEEE P2 EEEEZNRERF 2
EREE-

AT T RIS 5 8RR (FNE B
BINBERABRE D ZRE DT

2010 2009

—E-2F —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR FT

0 - 120 days 0ZE 120K 6,124 12,384
121 - 180 days 1212180K 577 1,008
181 — 360 days 181E360K 1,753 3,003
361 — 730 days 3612730k - 3,408
Over 731 days 731 R E - 787
8,454 20,590

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with
the gross aggregate carrying amount of RMB3,506,000
(2009: RMB7,198,000) which are past due as at the end of
the reporting period for which the Group has recognised
for impairment losses of RMB1,753,000 (2009: Nil). The
Group does not hold any collateral or credit enhancements
over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables after impairment losses which
are past due:

BIERAEBERESERRNAEERER
BE4a%8 AR ¥3,506,00070 (—TTNF:
ANEREE A %57,198,00070) 2 FEUWBR 0
WEMREBH MASREEBRAE+R 2
BEEE ARE,753,000 (Z T A
F|) AEBEWER LS RFEEW
HIF Gk sz ERE -

EEHEEE SRR (HBRERREK) 2
RRECOHTEAT

2010 2009
—E-2F —EZNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR FT AR FIT

Overdue: BHEg
Less than 1 year DREF 1,753 3,003
1 -2 years 1224 - 3,408
2 - 3 years 2E3F - 787
1,753 7,198
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 18. BB S R EHAMBRI (&)

82

The remaining trade receivables which are neither past
due nor impaired mainly comprise the receivables due
form state-owned and local commercial banks with good

BRTIABRARREZREEZEREE
BREEEERE CBEA KM EERTT
Z FEWBR AR -

reputation.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBHEEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —EEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
1 January —H—H 1,575 650
Allowance on receivables JiE Ui B 2R 4 6,310 925
31 December +-A=+—H 7,885 1,575

As at 31 December 2009, the directors had considered the
credit quality of the customers and the past experience
in pattern of collection of settlements from the trade
receivables and were in the opinion that trade receivables
of RMB1,575,000 were irrecoverable and accordingly, full
impairment loss for such receivables was made.

Analysis of impaired receivables

The directors have assessed the objective evidence of
impairment for the portfolio of trade receivables by
reference to existing business relationship with the
customers and settlement pattern during the year and
identified that there was increase in number of delayed
settlements in the portfolio of overdue trade receivables
and also decrease in sales transactions with certain
customers during the year under the new business plan
and the revised sales forecast and plan of its products
and services. The directors considered certain of these
long overdue trade receivables as at 31 December 2010
are irrecoverable and accordingly, impairment losses of
RMB7,885,000 for such receivables was made as at 31
December 2010.

Certain of the Group’s trade and other receivables of
RMB1,152,000 (2009: RMB645,000), were denominated
in US$ and HKS$, foreign currencies of respective group
entities.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

RZETAFF+_A=+—H EFL=
EEFPEEEEZREWEEKE ZER
CEFBREBEBTERE RAEARE
1,575,0007T 2 FEY'E 5 BR X TH Al g[8 -
WMERZERBERIEL 2SR ERE-

BB E JEW AR Z DT

EFELETHEPLP 2 BRBEEBBERARFER
ZEFER THREREIEREEG LT
EURERE  WHA®EE S EKER KA
AAZEHRERBAAREE BFAR
B EBTE EERERY 2EIEETH
EEARFEEETEPETZHERS
WL -BERE BTHRZE—ZF+=A
=t—HzafeARKE SRR
e R E—TF+_A=+—HE
DL EEWE 5 RFIED ARK7,885,000
LR EEE

AEEBETERESREMERAR
1,152,000 (Z 2T N F: ARE
645,00070) iR EAEBEERE 2 INEETT
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19.

20.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

19. EIRER

31 December 1 January

+=A=+-H 2009

2010 2009 —ZTNF

—E-2F ZETNF —A—H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT AREFT

Fixed-rate loan receivable Y EBER 4,269 - -

The above loan receivable represents a loan of
HK$5,000,000 (equivalent to RMB4,269,000) granted to
Achieve Best Investments Limited, an independent third
party, which is unsecured and carries interest at 2% per
annum. The loan was due on 30 November 2010. The
directors evaluated the potential business development
with the independent third party, assessed its credit quality
and agreed to extend the repayment terms of the loan to
30 November 2011. The directors continuously evaluate
the creditworthiness of the independent third party and
may, on a case by case basis, extend the repayment date
on mutual agreement.

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

LRI E RIE R T 8 3L 28 = 75 Achieve
Best Investments LimitedZ B k5,000,000
BT (SR AR4,269,0007T) A 4
ERWEER REFE2%:t 2 - RE
—ZE+—-A=1+HPHP -SEFEHEB
NEZFEECEERRBAREEEE
EEZ% FAERERZERBTEERZ
T——F+—A=TH -ESZFgTEHTMH
BUR=A2EE TERERBER
EHRRERERER-

20. BEEERE

31 December 1 January

+=B=+-—-H 2009

2010 2009 —TETNF

—E-ZF ZEENF —H—H

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥FT AREFT AREFT

Investments in unlisted fund FEMESKE 9,623 - -

The investments in the fund are denominated in US$, of
which 92% of the fund’s investments are listed securities
and liquid assets and the remaining 8% is an unlisted
security. The fair value of the investments in the unlisted
fund is estimated based on the fund’'s net asset value,
using quoted prices of the fund’s listed investments as
inputs.

ZESZREDUETHE E2RES
BR%BLEMEZFRRBEE 5 T8%A
RTHAFLTESF - FLMEEREZR
RERESZEEFEERESZ LT
BEZREFESBABREMMGE -
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21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. SRITEBERE
NEEZROTEHRIB S BEFANIRRT
MBEREFE2EZ036E (ZFZ A,

saving rates ranging from 0.2% to 0.36% per annum F02EE036F)tEZHE RRITHE

during the year (2009: 0.2% to 0.36%). e

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise cash and
bank deposits which carry interest at prevailing market

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash of AEEABARYK26,666,000T (ZZEF
RMB26,666,000 (2009: RMB295,000) were denominated NF: ARBE295,00000) 2 & TIRITA 6
in US$ and HK$, foreign currencies of respective group RBeNIREEEEE R 2 INEETT R
entities. JLETE °

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. B E S REMRK

31 December 1 January

+=A=+-8 2009

2010 2009 —ETNF

—E-2F ZETNF —A—H

RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000

ANREFT AREFT AREFT

Trade payables BB ZER 7,927 11,831 4,169
Deposits received from customers  BREFE & 1,289 715 958
Payroll payables e <7 B T % 828 430 412
Other payables H i fE 7 BR 5K 2,033 2,442 3,464
Total =h 12,077 15,418 9,003

AT HmEMRENEZERAERA
B0 ZRE DT

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of
trade payables at the end of the reporting period:

2010 2009

—EB-BF —ZEZNEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ABRETF T

Within 90 days 90K LA 915 4,271
91 — 180 days 91E180K 424 4,409
181 — 365 days 181E365K 3,973 2,613
366 — 730 days 366E730K 2,066 -
Over 731 days 731 REA E 549 538
7,927 11,831
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 2. BHESRHEAMERR (Z)
Certain of the Group's trade and other payable of REBETENEBESREMERAR
RMB1,245,000 (2009: RMB1,114,000) were denominated #1,245,000t (Z T TN F: AR
in US$ and HK$, foreign currencies of respective group 1,114,0007T) DR EEEEER 2 IMEE
entities. TR TTHE -
23. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 23. ENEENIE
31 December 1 January
+=ZA=+-H 2009
2010 2009 ZTTNF
—E-EF —EENF —B—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETFIT AREFT ARBFT
Amount due to a director T ESFKIA 297 301 128
The amount is denominated in HK$, unsecured, non- ZRIELAETTEHE - AR 2B BBK
interest bearing and repayable on demand. BREE-
24. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 24. BRIIRRFAIE
31 December 1 January
+=-RA=+-H 2009
2010 2009 ZETNEF
—E-EF —EENF —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT
Amount due to a shareholder FE S A BB 3R IR 11 12 12
The amount is denominated in HK$, unsecured, non- ZFELVETTRME AERE - 28 AEK
interest bearing and repayable on demand. ERER -
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25. BORROWINGS 25. B &
31 December 1 January
+=A=+-8 2009
2010 2009 ZEENF
—E2-2F ZEENF —H—H
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETT ARETT

Secured bank loan BEBETER

~ floating rate %8 - 16,753 16,805
Unsecured other loan EEMEMER

— fixed rate —ER - 1,798 -

- 18,551 16,805

At 31 December 2009, the secured bank loan was RZZENF+_A=+—H BEME
denominated in HK$ and carried interest rate of 2.75% TERUB T ERREBRITRERS
per annum over Hong Kong Dollar Inter Bank Offered M2.75 B2 FREGE - ZEZEFUAOAR
Rate. This loan was secured by (i) properties held by Mr. RIEEFRMEARRME LA ([RREE]) KR
Hung Yung Lai (“Mr. Hung"), a director and shareholder SHECZEBKW ZTRE 2 Rk
of the Company, and Ms. Lu Pun, the spouse of Mr. Hung, FEEEARNAZEBRRFER T L ERE
and (i) properties held by Sing Lee Pharmaceutical Import BZRAFNBELEALOFRARFAZ
& Export Company Limited, a company in which Mr. Hung MEEEIR - RNFR BEMRITERCE
and Ms. Li Kei Ling, the ultimate shareholders of the TEERE-
Company, have beneficial interests. During the year, the
secured bank loan was wholly repaid.
At 31 December 2009, the unsecured other loan was RZZBEZENF+_A=+—H BT
denominated in HK$ and carried interest rate at 3% per BeERFEMERNENEAIE -RF
annum. During the year, the unsecured other loan was W ERREMERDERHEER -

wholly repaid.
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITY 26. fTHEERMEE
Derivative financial liability-warrant subscription fTEemeBE-AREEZRER
rights
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Fr AREF T
Balance at beginning of year FYEEER - -
Proceeds from issue of warrants BITRRER TSR 4,062 -
Loss on initial recognition at fair value BERAREVBERITE
B8 43,132 -
Exercise of warrants subscription T AT IE R 2B AR R
rights during the year (4,106) -
Gain on fair value changes AREES S (15,325) -
Balance at end of year FREH 27,763 -
The following table discloses the movement of the TERFER S ZTFRABREETE

warrants during 2010:

Issued Exercised
Outstanding during during Outstanding
at 1.1.2010 the year the year at 31.12.1010
R-Z-2F
R-Z-2F +=A
—-A—H =+-H
fef R AT 8 FRBRT FRTE fef R AT
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
17 17 F17 17
Warrants B E - 159,000 16,000 143,000
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITY (Cont’d)

Derivative financial liability-warrant subscription
rights (Cont’d)

On 20 August 2010, the Company issued to independent
investors 159,000,000 warrant subscription rights, for a
consideration of HK$0.03 each. A holder of a warrant
is entitled to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company at HK$0.60 per warrant from the date of issue
of the warrants to the expiry of the 18 months from
the date of issue of the warrants. Since the warrant
subscription rights are issued in HK$, which is different to
the functional currency of the Company, such warrants are
classified as derivative financial liability

During the year, registered holders of 16,000,000 warrants
exercised their rights to subscribe for 16,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.60.

At 31 December 2010, the Company had outstanding
143,000,000 warrants to be exercised at any time on or
before 20 April 2012.

Warrant subscription rights were fair value using a
binomial option pricing model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

26.

TTEERas (&)

TESREE-AREFAEE (F)

—E-ZTZENA-+H AXAQXBUFT
M0.03B T2 RERBILIZEEE BT
159,000,000 2K 75 < 7R I - SR A i
BREANEEARREZEITARERR
BEZHTRISEAERAL USHRE
HEFE6OB TRE—RALNR LA - A
RRREERBEETRT WIHEAR
Rl ee EM WMEBRREESEAR
MEsmAaE-

RFEA - 16,000,000 RIEHEE 2 B L
B AITEEEF) LA0.60#E T 2 TEER
#516,000,000f% A~ & F IR H {H0.018 7T
2T

R-ZE—FTF+-_A=+—H ARQFH
143,000,00015 (M AR 1 T1E 2 SRALHERE - AT A
—T——FPA -+ Bz AT ERETT
f# o

REEBRBEIA_BABREEEE
BWARE-BREZ@AEBRT:

At issue date At exercise date 31.12.2010

—E-2F

REITAH RNTEA®H +=RA=+-—~H

Share price B (B HK$0.86 HK$0.80-0.90 HK$0.73

0.86/8 7T 0.80-0.90/ T 0.73% T

Expected volatility TEHNR 18 63.512% 56.992%- 51.275%
60.387%

Expected dividend yield EHIR B X 0% 0% 0%

Risk-free interest rate 2 B ) 3 0.288% 0.36%- 0.374%
0.44%

The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised
standard deviations of the continuously compounded rates
of return of the share prices of the Company and three
comparable companies with similar business nature of the
Company as of the valuation dates.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. R
Number of shares Amount
gnE 4= nE
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-%% —ZTNE “E2-%f ZZENE
‘000 000 RMB000 RMB 000
R i AREFT ANEETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEOETZERR
Authorised: EIE
At 1 January and 31 December R-A—-8k
+ZA=+-H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1 January ®m—A—8 663,200 663,200 6,827 6,827
Issue of ordinary shares on RERRTLERQ)
subscription (a) 132,640 - 1,166 -
Issue of ordinary shares upon ARREEDRRETED
exercise of warrant subscription BTERR(D)
rights (b) 16,000 - 139 -
At 31 December Bt+-A=1-H 811,840 663,200 8,132 6,827
(@) On 29 April 2010, the Company issued 132,640,000 new ordinary (@) RZE—ZTFWNAZFTNAAB XARFARIEAR
shares of HK$0.01 each to investors, for consideration of HK$0.61 PBEA-_Z—ZFNWANBZEEH&EET
per share, which is at a discount of approximately 18.7% to the 132,640,000k ZAREE0.01B T2 ML WK T
closing price of HK$0.75 per share on 9 April 2010, pursuant to the wEE BRREARGIEL R-ZTE—ZTFNW
placing agreement dated 9 April 2010. AABZ WM ESRR.7SETITELN18.7% -
(b)  During the year, registered holders of 16,000,000 warrants exercised (b)  HER 16,000,0001 RILAEE 2 E B AT
their rights to subscribe for 16,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 {E E AR - LL0.6078 T2 1715 /8 72 8# 16,000,000
each in the Company at the exercise price of HK$0.60. AR R G EEC.01E L 2 LA
All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all FRBETZAERNES FTEHHEAIME
respects with other shares in issue. BITROD ZBERFER -

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 28. LRGP BERNTRRZ

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company ARRAzBRREHBRESH

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was ANRIZ ERESE (TREEDRZFT
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of —HFNAZHLARB ETEBENARRD
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, ESRAERES THR-_F——FN
and will expire on 27 August 2011. Under the Scheme, AZ+tRER - REZTE ARFESR
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant BAREERESR (REARRRAME
options to eligible employees, including directors of the RAZES) BB ARBBAR A

Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the 2

Company.
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 28. UM AEBNRR S (&)

(Cont’d)

Equity - settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Share options were granted on 8 April 2002 (“2002
Option”), 9 October 2007 (“2007 Option”), 19 January
2010 (“2010 January Option”) and 16 August 2010
("2010 August Option”) for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees.

At 31 December 2010, the number of ordinary shares in
respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under 2002 Option, 2007 Option, 2010
January Option and 2010 August Option was 59,820,000
(2009: 33,480,000), representing 7.4% of the total
ordinary shares of the Company (2009: 6.6% of the total
ordinary shares) in issue at end of the reporting period.
The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

Options shall be exercised in the following manner:

Options granted to employees before 7 November
2002

e 1/3 of the option shall be exercisable after the expiry
of 6 September 2002;

e Additional 1/3 of the option will be exercisable after
the expiry of 6 September 2003;

e Additional 1/3 will be exercisable after the expiry of 6
September 2004.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE
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RZE—ZTF+_A=1+—H BRE=
TE-FHERE  —ETLFHERE =T
—ZEF-—ABEREAR-_ZE-—ZFN\ABE
%%?ﬁﬁ%*ﬁﬁZ%%%%ﬁ&zﬁ
W% 2L E A59,820,00010 ( ZEZ L&

33,480,00010 ) {E AR AR A WS BAIRE 2%
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 28. UM AEBNRR S (&)

(Cont’d)
Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company AATMZRELEBRESTS (£)
(Cont’d)
Options granted to employees after 7 November 2002 R-EE-_F+—-FA+tHAERTFESHE
BRE
e 5% of the option shall become exercisable upon the o S%MERBEBANRET B NEARR
6-months of the date of grant AFITE
e Additional 10% of the option shall become o EEIMO%MBEREENRLBHE A
exercisable upon the first anniversary of the date of FRATITE
grant
e Additional 35% of the option shall become o FHHNIS%EVEE AR AN H B HiRE
exercisable upon the second anniversary of the date FRATITE
of grant
e Additional 50% of the option shall become o FEINSO%MEEREENFRL AR =R
exercisable upon the third anniversary of the date of FRA TITE
grant
The exercise price is determined by the directors of the TEEBEHRARAIESGET  ENMERG)
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the RARBRGORE L B2 W E - ()iKHm
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of BOREERLBHAAER¥HE 27
grant, (i) the average closing price of the shares for the Wi EMI)VARAARKRD ZEEF ZRS
five business days immediately preceding the date of Eo
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. Mz EREMS WRERN ZRE-
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Options granted to employees before 7 November

28. LRGP BERNRRS (&)

ERRAZREFEBRESS (F)

Bz ARBERNZFBNT:

R-ZZE-S+-AtHZARTFEEZ

2002 BkE

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price

BRESR =R BEH TEH TEE

2002 Option 08.04.2002 08.04.2002 to 06.09.2004 07.09.2002 to 07.04.2012 HK$0.614

T _FERE —TTF —EZ_FMANEE —EE_EAALARE 0.6148 7T
mANE ZZEEWFAARB ZE-—FMAtH

Options granted to employees after 7 November

R-ZEZE-F+-AtHZERTEEZ

2002 M
Fair value
Option type Date of grant  Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REHAHZ
BRESR R BH BEH Cigd: TRfE DRE
2007 Option 09.10.2007 09.10.2007 to 08.10.2010 09.04.2008 to 08.10.2017 HK$0.368 HK$0.2253
T ERERE ZZTLE ZZZLETANEE “ZZ)\5MANRE 0.368/ T 0.2253% T
+ANE —E2-ZETANR —Z—+E£+ANE
2010 January Option 19.01.2010 19.01.2010 to 18.01.2013 19.07.2010 to 18.01.2020 HK$0.200 HK$0.1330
“E-TE-AERE —E-%F “Z-ZF5-AtNHZE “Z-TELATAEE 0.200% 7T 0.13307%8 7T
—A+hR —Z-=f-AtN\H —Z-ZF-A+NH
2010 August Option 16.08.2010 16.08.2010 to 15.08.2013 16.02.2011 to 15.08.2020 HK$0.840 HK$0.5289
—Z-ZE )\ Ak —Z2-%E ZZ-ZE/\A+REZE —Z-——f%-R+XHZE 0.840/ 7T 0.52897 7T
NA+7<H “Z-=F/\A+HAE —Z-ZF)/\A+1H
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 28. LR AERNRR S (&

(Cont’d)
Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company AATZREEEBRESE (£)
(Cont’d)

TREBN -T—SFE2BREL S

The following table discloses the movement of the share
options during 2010:

Outstanding Outstanding

at Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired at
1.1.2010 during year during year during year during year 31.12.2010
R-2-2fF R-2-2fF
-A-H +=A=Z+-8
Option type BREER i RATE REARH RERTHE RERRK REARFH i RATE
000 ‘000 000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
7 F F 7 F F
Granted to directors
2002 Option 3,180 - - - - 3,180
2010 January Option - 1,800 - - - 1,800
3,180 1,800 - - - 4,980
Exercisable IR_ZE-ZEEAR
at the end of 2010 3,270
Granted to employees RTEE
2007 Option Tz 30,300 - - 2,980 - 27,320
2010 January Option - 19,100 - 570 - 18,530
2010 August Option - 8,990 - - - 8,990
30,300 28,090 - 3,550 - 54,840
Exercisable AR-ZF-SFETE
at the end of 2010

28,247

The following table discloses the movement of the share

TREBRTAKEESFRERZBRE
R-EBAE2 D)

options granted to directors and employees of the Group

during 2009:
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Expired Outstanding at
1.1.2009 during year during year during year during year 31.12.2009
RZBEHLEF RZBEHLEF
-B-H +=g=+-8
Option type B REER i RATHE REARH RERTHE RERRK REARFH i RATIE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors RTE%
2002 Option R FRRE 3,180 - - - - 3,180
Exercisable AR-ZZZNFETE
at the end of 2009 3,180
Granted to employees BYEE
2007 Option DL FRERE 40,820 - - 10,520 - 30,300
Exercisable AR-ZZZNFETE
at the end of 2009 15,150
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 28. LR AERNRRE (£&)

(Cont’d)
Equity — settled share option scheme of the Company ARTZRELEBRESTE (£)
(Cont’d)
Options were priced using binomial option pricing model. BREDA—_BEABRECEBENEE-
The inputs into the model were as follows: R 2@ ABLT:
2010 January 2010 August
option option
—E-BF —E-BF
—RERE NABRE
Share price i B HK$0.20 HK$0.84
Exercise price IEE HK$0.200 HK$0.84
Expected volatility T8 HRR 18 86.10% 74.677%
Expected dividend yield TE H AR B & 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate ER =R 2.78% 2.489%
The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised BRDIBBEARR R =MEEERUERD
standard deviations of the continuously compounded rates AR ARNEHERBHRENFEEA D
of return of the share prices of the Company and three WENTHFEFEEETE -
comparable companies with similar business nature of the
Company as of the valuation dates.
In relation to the share options granted by the Company, BAARAGIETHERE NEERRE
the Group recognised the total expense of RMB3,175,000 EE-ZEFT_A=T—HILFEIHEE
in cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses as well as A - DEMEEBRARERERF
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December BHRY A AR 1750000 (ZEE N
2010 (2009: RMB2,849,000). F: AR®2,849,0007T) °
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29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. BEARKIE
2010 2009
=t B ¥-3 —TTNE
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFTT ARETT

Capital expenditure in respect of BT HE

acquisition of property, plant and BEFEEMBERENA

equipment contracted for but not R 2 T B E

provided in the consolidated financial B K E AT

statements 151 -

30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. HEAE

The Group as lessee AEBEEREEA
At the end of the reporting date, the Group had RBEAHR AEERESEREEH
commitments for future minimum lease payments under B A R EHERERERIEMR
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented SR KRB HTAT

premises which fall due as follows:

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T AREFT
Within one year —F RN 921 318
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FRERF
(BEEEMSF) 16 -
937 318
Leases are negotiated and fixed for terms of one to three HERLPNFATETERP—ZE=F-
years.
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3N.EELRS
The Group entered into the following related party REERFANETUNTHELTR S :
transactions during the year:
e Compensation of key management personnel e TEEEEAEME
The remuneration of directors and other members of AEREESERTFTEERECKE 2 M
key management during the period was as follows: e /(N
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREFT
(Restated)
(E3)
Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 1,757 1,695
Retirement scheme contributions IRURAEFET & 50
benefits 181 153
Share options granted to MESEKEERTZ
directors and employees g 629 1,020
2,567 2,868
*  Rental expenses o FHEMX
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFTT AR¥ T

Rentals paid to fellow subsidiary for S+ FRBER A =B
lease of office premises WENBRAANES 402 -
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 32. RIKERFHE
AEBMARENEBNAEREREE
BHMATELHE R EERASE
BrEESHBE LHETIANESE
BoREBABELTEMEZH-REE
BITEKAZ5% (18 A% £BR220,000%
5T) MRS Z Rt R AEE .

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributed 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000, which contribution is matched by employees.

AEEETHZBEERBPREESHT K
FEEZBRAREEERBAMTEZKE -
AEBARFHFMEAAZEA D LBRA
AEIHFMMESERRE2ES -AREH
AEIZBEEERFREE ZHR-

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local governments in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 33.
COMPANY

RRaMBRRzHB

Country of
incorporation/
establishment/

Proportion of

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/

Name of company operation ownership interest registered capital Principal activities
ERTRARE
S R B/
ARER EERR ERASH ERgi#E TEEE
Direct Indirect
E# i
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) British Virgin Islands 100% - 715 shares of US$1 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. ("Singlee BVI")"  REBEXES each HWARR
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I.) 715§k
Co., Ltd. ([#FBVI])" ELENE )
Singlee Software? PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
M F US$4,325,500 software products, sales

4,325,500% 7T
R E AR

Annual Report 2010
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33. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 33. AR BB AR 2718 (&)

COMPANY (Cont’d)

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/

Country of
incorporation/

establishment/ Proportion of

Name of company operation ownership interest registered capital Principal activities
ERTRAR
EMBL KL BA& /G
NEER EERR ERESH EXxgEE TEEE
Direct Indirect
E# ik
Singlee Technology? PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
IR 3 US$17,180,000 software products, sales
17,180,000% 7T of related hardware
AR products and provision
of software-related
technical services
MAMBEEL HER
HEMMENEm
W R R 2 Bl
R#%
Sinnglee Zhuha® PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
RS e US$1,250,000 software products, sales
1,250,000 T of related hardware
AR products and provision
of software-related
technical services
MANBEEL HER
HEMMENEm
W R R B 2 Bl
&%
Beijing Century? PRC - 100% Registered capital Development and sales of
LR tt4e ey US$1,000,000 software products, sales

of related hardware
products and provision
of software-related
technical services

MERMEERHER -
HEREEGED
PAR SR8 148 2 Bl
R%

1,000,000% 7T
&R

Singlee BVI is a limited liability company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

Singlee Software and Beijing Century are wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

Singlee Technology and Singlee Zhuhai are sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in the PRC.

1. FABVIREXRBRAMBEAMKINERET

NCIE

2. HANEMRIERELEREIERE-

3. HABEEMMNKERETEKINFIEGE

sBAA-

BEFERL BEECAMERRETE
BT RE 55

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. BEXRERKeHEMREEB N R
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 5

(a) EXERER

(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, accumulated losses and
other reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

AREERLARETRRAEEZ
ERTNSEEE TEBEILAE
YT F TIPS PNE
8 o ph £ AL - AR Y RS
SR

AEBZEARBERBREARTEE A
FEAEREAS (B AR B EARAS » B (B
ZEERMEMEHERE)

EEEY¥F - ARANEARE-FR
mEZ—#y EEGEEEARKAE
KEEERENBRE AR AEH
BIRBEFZEZ EBIHRE
BITHMBARBITHESKNELRRE
BHRRFEEEBERRE
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. EXRREEREAREEBENRER
R (&)

34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(b) ERT BRI

(b) Categories of financial instruments

31 December

100

+=ZA=+-H 1 January
2010 2009 2009
Y
—E-ZF —EEAE —-A—H
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables =503 &0
(including bank balances (BERTHEBEREAS)
and cash) 48,649 25,653 11,572
Held for trading investments ~ #{FEEKE 9,623 - -
58,272 25,653 11,572
Financial liabilities THERE
Amortised cost B SH R 11,096 33,567 24,990
Derivative financial liability TEEBE 27,763 - -
38,859 33,567 24,990
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34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. BEXRERKeHEMREEB N R
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)

(0 ¢REREEANRKE

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
loan receivable, trade receivables, held for trading
investments, bank balances and cash, amount due to
a director, amount due to a shareholder, trade and
other payables, borrowings and derivative financial
liability. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency sales and
purchases and certain loan receivable, trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, amount due to a director, amount due
to a shareholder and borrowings of the Group
are denominated in United States dollar (“US$")
and Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective
group entities, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure when the
need arises.

AEEZT2eRTABHEERE
R EBERESER FIEEERE R
THEHEMRS BNEFSE EH
BReHE EBNESREMBER B
ENRTESRMABE -ZFERTA
ZHBREMEFHRE - BZFEH
TARMEBZEREEMZER (FR
Rk E%EREEBERRR)
FERRERBE SRR GREWMA
HMEZ R BREN T B E
EERENERZFAR AR AE
KRB ZTAERABE G-

% 3

() E¥ERE

AEERINEHEREE AR
SEZETRRER BEES
REMER RITEHRRAS
ENE SN BNEFHEA
P BCRRIB R BB AR T ([
T RET(TETR]) (ZFE
BUFEREEER ZER
¥ ) FHE - EARKEAREINER
o NS B B B0 AT 51 B
HERE AWM BEEESERIN
ERR HEREELHERDN
SN TR B o
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34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 4. BEXERkemEMEREB N RIEK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (#E)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *REARSEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d) mEEE (E)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d) () Bk (&)
The carrying amount of the foreign currency RIEARUINETHENEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary EREBEENREBENT
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
2010 2009
—E-%% “LTNE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE g8f EE BE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR  ARMTR ARBTL  ARETR

Uss e 21,901 400 450 -

HKS BT 15,540 945 489 19,665
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34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the sensitivity to
a 5% (2009: 5%) change in the RMB against
US$ and HKS$. The 5% (2009:5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analyses of the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period have been determined
based on the adjustment of translation of the
monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2009: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates. A negative number
indicates an increase in the post-tax loss where
RMB strengthens against US$ and HK$. For a
5% (2009: 5%) weakening of RMB against US$
and HK$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss.

. EXRREEREREEBNNEK
R(E&)

() EREAKREEBNREE (&)

T mE (E)
() E¥mEbE (%)

TRANAEEHAREHET
NRABETEXRZEEH% (ZETN
F 5% )MBUERE -Z5% (—F
TNF 5% ) EERBRFEIN
PEME RS IR A e Z EEF R AR
BREREL R -NRE AR K
= B HIMNE R B Y BURE D AT T
ARHEHREREERAGR
SN E R 5% BB (—FT N
F5%)ZBEZRHRE-AER
MRAREHEETRBTIEER
BREREREM ARBRET
METRZES% (ZETNF:
5% ) RIS BRI 1R B R E AR R A
HREE-

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT AR FIT

Increase in post-tax loss (i) R A 1% B 1R 15 0 ()
If RMB strengthens against US$ g A R# X E L HE (986) (19)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i A R # 58 T FHE (730) 962

(i) This is mainly attributable to the outstanding foreign
currency receivables and bank balances at year end as a
result of the foreign currency sales in the Group and the
proceeds from issue of shares of the Company.

(i) WHEIBARRMETEKEER
TE P H IR AT EE IMNE K
AR RITHEER ©
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34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 4. BEXERkemEMEREB N RIEK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (#E)
(Cont’d)

() ¢*REAREEENREE (&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loan receivable (see note 19 for
details) and fixed-rate unsecured other loan (see note
25 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to floating rate bank balances (see
note 21 for details) and secured bank loan (see note
25 for details). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
warrant subscription rights. The sensitivity analyses
have been determined on the exposure to the equity
price risks at the end of reporting period. If the prices
of the respective equity instruments had been 5%
higher or lower, the post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2010 would increase or decrease by
RMB3,346,000 and RMB3,212,000 respectively as
a result of changes in fair value of the derivative
financial liability.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE
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AEEATRTSEKER (HER
i EE19) e S I A (2 (AR
HEHSHIES) EM 2 AR ET

AEBENMAZ AT BIRITHER (F
BRMEE21) REEWRITER (715
A2 MRS REN AR &
EREERR URFHERITEER
FEM KGR AURD R AENERE

B o
B A B 157

REEREIRBEMAERKRERS
Bk REBERIREHRDPBAE
1 B B8 3 1T BURRE AT o i B IB AR AR
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4. EXxEBREEREREEB N RK
R(E&)

34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) SREREEEMNREE (£)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Other price risk (Cont’d)

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in unlisted funds. The sensitivity
analyses have been determined on the exposure to
the market price risks at the end of reporting period.
If the prices of the investments in unlisted funds had
been 5% higher or lower, the post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2010 would decrease or
increase by RMB73,000 respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets,
which is stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

T mE (E)

A 1EEm g (&

AEBTFEF EMESREMAER
AEBER - NEECDHRBSHRD
S ERRBETHREDN - M5
HIFLTESRENER EFARTEK
5% BHE_ZT-TF+_A=+—H
LFENBRBRABREEESIERER
BRERAEZS MR SIBMARE
73,0007T °

=Em

R=ZZT—ZTF+-_A=+—H £&%
ARZZE FREBITHEGEERALE
B BRAMEE 2 ZAEERRIR
BRERA MR R TR B E R
CREEZREME-
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34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 4. BEXERkemEMEREB N RIEK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (#E)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () eRMEAKREEBENREE (£)

policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’'d) ERE (&)

The director continuously evaluates the EFeRETHEWERZHFAZ
creditworthiness and financial strength of the EENMMREN UEEEREHFH
counterparty of the loan receivable as well as SECAEEREBEN BRERZIKE
considering potential business development of the BHEERBERHEE-

counterparty. The term of the loan receivable is
stipulated in a loan agreement.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that REBMTAEBERBREmIBEE KR
sales of products are made and services are provided BEHRTAEEEGELBENEF
to customers with an appropriate credit history and MASENEFHEFPNEELER
the Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial BENARZERBREFPMNBAER
strength of its customers as well as considering S -BP —RERNNI1208 )
prior dealing history with the customers. Generally, 180RMEEH  MAKEE —RTEK
customers are granted with credit periods from 120- EPRRHEERIE(AERAER - BH
180 days and the Group usually does not require JERE ZEFHERDMERGZEE Y
collaterals nor any credit enhancement from its HHERMFEI8 - BEEETHRELS
customers. An ageing analysis of trade receivables MRk @iNE MBEIRE
is set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial BEEXSFH Bt hEEKE
statements. Management makes periodic collective 2 R IT R 88 KR Bl 5 Al o BE UL i
assessment as well as individual assessment on the T ARAESZRAELEERB ZEER
recoverability of trade receivables based on historical BB R KR -

payment records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the customers and whether
there are any trade disputes with them. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

106 SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+-H=+—HIFE

34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. BEXRERKeHEMREEB N R
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () 2RAKBTEBEMNRBER (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as
100% (2009: Nil) of the loan receivable was due
from a single independent third party. The Group
has concentration of credit risk as 28% (2009: 20%)
and 61% (2009: 42%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group's largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively in the provision of
software-related technical support services business
segment.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are state-

=EmE (&)

AEBARZEESETRRE RER
100% (ZZTZTNF &) ZERIRER
TR —BBLE=FREA B
rEBEBEAZEEERRE RHE
E28% (ZEZTNF :20% ) 61%
(ZBEZTNF :42%) 2 BRI E 55008
RBESHRBEAEB I EAEPRAE
BrRAAEPXRE UEEKEZR
T8 Th % R B L 804 48 B 1 S 4 R 7%
LEBHE -

HRABIBF I REERFNER
RITHMW A EAERT AEENORD

owned banks and local commercial banks with good BxZERBRAER-
reputation.
Liquidity risk REE 2 EE

As set out in note 2, the Group is currently dependent
upon the continuing supporting from the shareholder
of the Company and additional external funding to
meet in full its financial obligation as they fall due
for the foreseeable future. With the support from
the shareholder of the Company and the additional
external funding, the management of the Company
consider that the Group’s liquidity risk has been
reduced.

SR RE2 P L - AT TR RO - N
7R MR FE AR 2 B2 AR S BRON 2 5
RES 2 FHBEXF NENEZ M
BAE - FEZA DA RRREINZ I
RESZXF ARAEEERR
ARRZRBECRBE HETE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFE

34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 4. BEXERkemEMEREB N RIEK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (#E)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () *REARSEENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity and interest risk tables REEERFIFEREE K

The following tables detail the Group's remaining TRA/AEEZFTEMLESRARE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BTARBBAZHEB - ZRIRR
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on TREBERTEEERAIHEIER
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities ZEHZARMRREMRE - LR
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be HFBRETERERE

required to pay. The table includes both interest and

principal cash flows.

Liquidity risk table Fl 3 2 e & HE &

Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
effective Payable 0t030 311060 61t0 90 91t0 180 180 to 365 undiscounted 315t December

interest rate on demand days days days days days cash flows 2010
R-F-%8%
nETH 2z =t-2 At-E nt-% -ANtE AR toAZt-BZ
ERAZ REREE =R AR ATR -ANtAR ZEATER RenENE REE
4 B0 B0 RMB000 AE000 B0 RMB000 MBI B0
% Wiioa ABRTT WiizA ARRFE Wiioa ABETT WiizA Wiiza

2010 -%-%%
Trade and other payables ERESREMEN - 2615 1,665 532 803 645 4528 10,788 10,788
Amount due to a director ENESHE - 297 - - - - - 297 297
Amount due to a shareholder ERRRTE - 1 - - - - - 11 1
2983 1,665 53 803 45 458 11,0% 11,09

2009 nE
Trade and other payables AREMER - 538 1,254 705 1230 3479 7497 14,703 14703
Amount due to a director B - 301 - - - - - 301 301
Amount due to a shareholder - 1 - - - - - 1 12
Short-term bank loan 38 - 18 48 48 16,801 - 16,945 16,753
Other loan 300 - - - - 1816 - 1816 1798
851 1302 75 1278 2,0% 7497 377 33567
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e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFE

34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 3. BEXRERKeHEMREEB N R

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES K(E)

(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () 2RAKBTEBEMNRBER (&)
policies (Cont’d)
Fair value RAAE

The fair value of derivative instruments is calculated

PTETRZAAERBRENE - HE

using quoted prices. Where such prices are not ZEBE BIFEAETETIAMUA
available, use is made of discounted cash flow ENHBERcEEMBETHERS
analysis using the applicable yield curve for the fﬁiﬁﬁﬁéi'ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁémilﬂﬁu%
duration of the instruments for non-optional AHETERINETIHERSRED
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional METE-

derivatives.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding held for trading investments and
derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial

HpemEEREREBE (TEER
EFEERERTETLR) ZAAER
AREEBELUFERSRENITE

EEO

EERR REBHERATEREE M
BHREANEREERSBBENEKD
BEREAAERSE

RAMEF BB G E BRI HE

TREHRNBERAARBEZEBER

instruments that are measured subsequent to loss on A= /i\v‘?ﬂI,E\Z T RE—EBRE
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 FoERABHERAAETRERN

to 3 based on the degree to which the fair values is
observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

R -

s F-ERNAREAENKREER
mIZH A BRI EEL B ENRE
(REHE) -

s FEMAARBEHEDNEBEE
HEBEZHABLIERIENRE—
BHRANz@mE EATEEM (B
%) SR (B EE51E) AT
BR(EZER) -
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e MR AR MG

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z - ZF—FF+_-H=+—HIFFZE

4. EXARBEEREARE
R (&)

34. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK HEEHKRE
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

() *REREEENREE (£)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Fair value (Cont’d) AAE(E)

Fair value measurements recognised in the RAMEFTEERREGE BN I RE
consolidated statement of financial position (Cont’d) (#&)

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those s ZF-ER/AABEHENEBEE

FEBEZHAELIFEEATEER
ZTBEE (BXefcBAR)

derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (unobservable inputs). (=) -
2010
—E-Ef
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-Bf E-ER E=Ef &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Financial assets at FVTPL BRERBEAABNEREE
Held for trading investments BEEERE - 9,623 - 9,623
Financial liabilities tRERE
Derivative financial liability fTEeRaRE - - 27,763 27,763

110

There are no financial instruments measured at fair RZEZNF+=-A= + A I £ #7
value at 31 December 2009. ANRBEFENEBMIA

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the AFEEE—EBHARE_EHREILE
current year. R E

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
derivative financial liability is disclosed in note 26.
Of the total gains for the year included in profit or
loss, RMB14,760,000 relates to derivative financial
liability held at the end of the reporting period. Fair
value gain on derivative financial liability is included in
“Other gains”.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF&#4 (£E) ROBERAAE

FoELATESREEANETEL
R BRH 26 st ABREZFA
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ=—F—FF+-H=+—HIFE

= B 5 W AR M A

35.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company
under the Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per
share to Mr. Hung, a director and shareholder of the
Company. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.730 immediately before the day on which options
were granted. The grant of share options to Mr. Hung
and the specific mandate to allot, issue and deal with the
shares of the Company upon conversion of the foregoing
share options were approved by the Special General
Meeting held on 28 February 2011.

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000
share options to subscribe for shares in the Company
under the Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714
per share to its employees of the Group. Shares of the
Company were at closing price of HK$0.690 immediately
before the day on which options were granted. The grant
of share options to its employees of the Company and the
specific mandate to allot, issue and deal with the shares
of the Company upon conversion of the foregoing share
options were approved by the Special General Meeting
held on 28 February 2011.

35. WEHREE

RZT——F—A+8 AR REZT
£1#% 165,000,000 A RIEAR R A RHD 2
BRETARNRESHERFARRLLE 11F
EAEN0.730/8 7T - ER AR 1 B B
AN A B 2 T B AB0.7307% 7T - [A1Ag
o R RS IR M oA B 3 b I R AR M 1A D
BOBRARBEERARNARO ZEREED
R-E——F A -+ N\BEITZRERE
BIKE LR

RZE——F—A+=H ARAREZ
=T &9 119,260,000 A] 38 B AN A &) X
MZBRETASERE TEE/ER
0.7148 7T - EERBERER L BRI AR A
P fn 2 W (B /20.69078 7T » M A A F{E B
B BB R M B i |t B AR M AR AT 3
BOIRBEARBBRD 2FRHEECDR
E-——F A+ N\BETZRRFHK
LR E-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZ—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFE

36. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 36. XA T B ER B E
THE COMPANY

2010 2009
—g-®F  —TINF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Fr AREFT
(Restated)
(&E31)
Property, plant and equipment THE BELKE 27 13
Interests in subsidiaries NS L - -
Amount due from subsidiaries JE Bt /B A R R IR 29,947 8,194
Current assets MENEE 20,719 5,345
Current liabilities mEBE (28,648) (19,602)
22,045 (6,050)
Share capital & < 8,132 6,827
Reserves (note) s (M) 13,913 (12,877)
22,045 (6,050)
Note: B &
Movement in the reserves: R
1 January w—HA—8 (12,877) (17,890)
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)RF (55,504) 2,134
Recognition of equity-settled share based payments TR A 45 & LAIR () A BT 5 3,175 2,849
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBR 81,384 -
Transaction cost attributable to issue of shares BT EIE R SRR (2,265) -
Exchange difference on translation R ER - 30
31 December R+-—A=+—8 13,913 (12,877)
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